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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Innovationpay Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of
which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

| am pleased to present the annual results of China
Innovationpay Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

During the year under review, the Group’s turnover was
approximately HK$212,805,000, a 19.11% decrease as
compared to last year HK$263,095,000. It was mainly
due to global economic climate clouded with various
uncertainties. The Group recorded a profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$91,362,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012
(2011: HK$283,071,000).

Of the said profit, HK$252,640,000 (2011: HK$230,986,000)
was attributable to the gain on fair value change of
contingent consideration payable as valued at year end. It
should be noted that this valuation will vary from time to
time depending on market conditions.

Following the Company has placed the emphasis on
the business of (i) the development and operation of
electronic payment tool; (ii) the trading of computers and
communication equipment; and (iii) the operations of
prepaid card business, including the issuance of various
prepaid cards, part of which have multiple functions,
Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial Management Co. Ltd., an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
submitted to operations office (& &2 &) of PBOC to
seek PBOC’s approval, has obtained the Certificate for
Approval for Payment Business from PBOC pursuant
to the Administrative Measures of Payment Services for
Non-Financial Institutions (3F& RUMHE X RIS & 2 3%
7£) and the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the
Administrative Measures of Payment Services for Non-
Financial Institutions (FFEREE X IREESEIELE
HEAHRIY on 28 June 2012. This will increase the strong
profitability of the third party payment business of the
Company and can bring more business opportunities to
the Group in the future.

Uncertainties during the year not only provided valuable
experiences to us, uniting the board, management and
employees together, but also enable us to face and
survive new challenges to come.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

On behalf of the board, | would like to acknowledge
the commitment of our staff, past and present, and
the continued support of our business partners and
shareholders. | would also like to express my personal
appreciation to my fellow board members for their
continuous valuable contributions.

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN Wk DM

OVERVIEW

The Group consists of the Company, Country Praise
Enterprises Limited (“CPE”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “CPE Group”). The Company is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in (i) the development and operation
of electronic payment tool; (ii) the trading of computers
and communication equipment; and (jii) the operations of
prepaid card business, including the issuance of various
prepaid cards, part of which have multiple functions, in
the PRC.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
turnover was approximately HK$212,805,000, a 19.11%
decrease as compared to last year HK$263,095,000.
The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$91,362,000 (2011: HK$283,071,000). Of the said
profit, HK$252,640,000 (2011: HK$230,986,000) was
attributable to the gain on fair value change of contingent
consideration payable as valued at year end. It should
be noted that this valuation will vary from time to time
depending on market conditions.

For continuing operations, it recorded a turnover of
HK$212,805,000 in 2012 (2011: HK$263,095,000). The
gross profit margin of the Group recorded 38% (2011:
32%).

SALES AND MARKETING

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2012,
the Group adopted more-client-oriented promotional
strategies to promote the products, resulting a 36.8%
decrease in sales and marketing expenses over the same
period last year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group did
not have any significant investment.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$143,425,000.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has no bank
borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN Wk DM

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has no material
capital commitments or substantial pledges on its assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has no material
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2012, the total current assets
over the total current liabilities was 2.26 times (2011:
2.02 times). The ratio of all debts to total assets was
0 (2011: 0). As most sales are made in Renminbi, no
hedging arrangement is made to offset the exposures to
fluctuations in exchange rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group’s operations are mainly located in the
PRC and its transactions, monetary assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in Renminbi, there is minimal
exposure to foreign currency risks. The Group monitors
its foreign currency risks and will consider hedging
significant currency exposures should the need arises.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 11 trademarks
registered in China and Hong Kong, of which all
trademarks have been approved.

At the same time, the Group had 31 software copyrights
in China.

MAJOR EVENTS

On 28 June 2012 Beijing Gaohuitong Management, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
submitted to operations office (&% & &f) of PBOC to
seek PBOC’s approval, has obtained the Certificate for
Approval for Payment Business from PBOC pursuant
to the Administrative Measures of Payment Services for
Non-Financial Institutions {3F& RIS (RIS E 1B I
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN Wk

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has approximately
251 employees. Employees are remunerated according
to their performance and work experience. In addition
to basic salaries and retirement scheme, staff benefits
include performance bonus. The Directors believe that
good quality of its employees is a company asset which
affects growth and improves profitability. The Group
recognizes the importance of staff training and thus
regularly provides internal and external training for its
staff to enhance their skills and knowledge.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has no material
outstanding litigation.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Upon completion of the acquisition of CPE and its
subsidiaries by the Group on 28 February 2011, and the
obtaining of the Certificate for Payment Business from
PBOC by Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial Management
Co. Ltd., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, on 28 June 2012, the Group has paved a
solid foundation for the development of its prepaid card
business. The prepaid card business includes varies
product lines namely gift cards, regional cards and
standard Unionpay card, which enables the Group to
become one of the operators with the richest portfolio
of products among the industry. Meanwhile, building
on its rich variety of products, the Company has been
actively developing peripheral businesses, such as the
general trading business, bank credit award business and
online shopping business as derived from the gift card
segment. Besides, the Company has been exploring the
applications of prepaid model. Such act could be evident
by the launch of online air ticket booking platform under
kopu.com in 2012. Like the cooperation with Tenpay.
com, the Group has been seeking lateral cooperation with
industry peers.

EVENT AFTER YEAR END DATE

The Company and China Construction Bank (Asia)
Corporation Limited jointly issued a Co-Branded Prepaid
Card Product on 7 February 2013. The Co-Branded
Prepaid Card will be an effective complement to the
Company’s many existing prepaid card business streams.
The Board considers that the launch of the Co-Branded
Prepaid Card will bring significant development for the
Company’s business and once again confirms its leading
role in the industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance
Report in the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 December 2012.

The Company was in compliance with the code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules. With Mr Cao Chunmeng has been
appointed as chief executive officer of the Company and
Mr Guan Guisen has resigned as chief executive officer
on 11 July 2012, the Company is in compliance with
Code Provision A.2.1 set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated.

Below are the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Group. On 30 June 2005, pursuant to a resolution
in writing passed by the Directors, the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Group are as
follows:

- Code of ethics and securities transactions;

- Corporate governance practice manual;

- Term of reference for audit committee;

- Term of reference for board committee;

- Term of reference for remuneration committee; and
- Term of reference for nomination committee.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in securities of the Company. Upon the
Company'’s specific enquiry, each director had confirmed
that during the year ended 31 December 2012, they had
fully complied with the required standard of dealings and
there was no event of non-compliance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and
control of the Company. Its main roles are to provide
leadership and to approve strategic policies and plans
with a view to enhancing shareholder value. All directors
carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
laws and regulations are followed. Any director may
request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
reasonable request to the Board.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

As at 31 December 2012, the Board comprised three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. Details of biographical details of directors and
senior management are set out on page 20 to 25 of this
annual report.

The Board complies with the minimum requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors and one
of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
required under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and considers that all the independent non-
executive directors to be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REBRE

The Board has adopted good corporate governance
practices and procedures and taken appropriate steps
to provide effective communication with shareholders.
Directors’ Board meeting is held at least 4 times regular
meetings a year. In addition, Directors have full access to
information on the Group and independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

The Board held four board meetings in 2012. Attendance
of the directors were as follows:

Name of Directors
EENA

EXECRMREFEXEEERARER
FTERMEERFUERRESERE
Ao EEEEFROBITHNAEHES -
o - EFTMEEMEAEEER - AR
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EFEN-_FT-_HFHETORER -2
BESHFESRCHENT ¢

Attendance
HERE

Executive Director

HITES

Mr. Guan Guisen

BERLE

Dr. Lei Chunxiong

EAEEL

Mr. Cao Chunmeng (Appointed on 11 July 2012)
EFRAE(E=Z—-FtA+—HEZE)

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. Li Yuezhong (Resigned on 31 May 2012)
ZRHPEE(E=E-ZFRA=+—HEHE)

Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHITES

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

FEEELT

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

FTRAR%EE

Mr. Gu Jiawang

AEREE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERRE

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of the Company are engaged on a service
contract of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years.

Besides, the procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of directors are laid down in
the Company’s Bye-laws. According to Bye-laws, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election at annual general meetings of the
Company. Any new director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself for re-election
by shareholders at the first general meeting and any
new director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election
by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Bye-laws, Mr. Cao Chunmeng and
Dr. Fong Chi Wah shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The Board recommends
their re-appointment. The Company’s circular, sent
together with this annual report, contains detailed
information of the above two directors as required by the
GEM Listing Rules.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah has served on the Board for more
than 9 years but he has never held any executive
or management position in the Group nor has he
throughout such period been under the employment
of any member of the Group. The Directors noted the
positive contributions Dr. Fong Chi Wah made to the
development of the Company. The nomination committee
of the Company has assessed and is satisfied of the
independence of Dr. Fong Chi Wah. The Board considers
that the long services of Dr. Fong Chi Wah would not
affect his exercises of independent judgments, and
therefore recommends Dr. Fong Chi Wah to be re-
elected.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development
All directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a director, and of the conduct and business activities of
the Company. The Company is responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training for its directors. Accordingly,
the Company has put in place a training and development
programme for the directors including: an on-going
training and professional development programme for
directors.

All the directors of the Company were provided
with monthly commentary on the Group’s business,
operations, and financial matters. The Company had also
organised a seminar on the topic of “Internal Control”
and “Notifiable Transactions” under the Listing Rules for
the directors. All the executive Directors of the Company
namely Mr. Guan Guisen, Dr. Lei Chunxiong and Mr.
Cao Chunmeng; independent non-executive Directors
of the Company namely Dr. Fong Chi Wah, Mr. Wang
Zhongmin and Mr. Gu Jiawang participated in the said
seminar. In addition, individual Directors also participated
in other courses relating to the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director or further enhancement of
their professional development by way of online aids or
reading relevant materials.

All executive and independent non-executive Directors
had provided the Company Secretary with their training
records for the year under review.

Directors’ Code of Ethics

The directors observe a code of ethics (the “Code of
Ethics”) which is formulated and adopted to enhance
the standard of corporate governance and corporate
behaviour. The principles on which the Code of Ethics
relies are those that concern transparency, integrity,
accountability and corporate social responsibility taking
into account the relevant provisions/requirements by the
governing authorities.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of GEM Listing
Chapter 20, the Company did not have material transactions
which fell under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction”.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30
June 2005. The Remuneration Committee is with the
responsibility of approving the remuneration policy for
all Directors and senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee members include a majority of independent
non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Guan Guisen
Dr. Lei Chunxiong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li Yuezhong
(Resigned on 31 May 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin — Chairman of Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Gu Jiawang

All Remuneration Committee members met at the end
of the year for the determination of the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of
the Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee
members also meet as and when required to consider
remuneration related matters. The works carried out by
the Remuneration Committee are set out below:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of remuneration
of Directors and the senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;
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(b)

to determine the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and the senior management,
including benefits in kind, provident/retirement
benefits and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of independent non-executive Directors;

to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive Directors, senior management
in connection with any loss or termination of
their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on
30 June 2005. The Nomination Committee made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of Directors and the senior management personnel
with reference to certain guidelines as endorsed by
the Nomination Committee members. The Nomination
Committee members include all directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen
Dr. Lei Chunxiong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li Yuezhong
(Resigned on 31 May 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

Mr. Gu Jiawang — Chairman of Nomination Committee

All Nomination Committee members met at the end of the
year.

The works carried out by the Nomination Committee
members are set out below:

(@ toreview the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) and
to make recommendations to the Board after such
review;

(b) to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, having regard to the
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules; and

() to make recommendations to the Board on relevant

matters relating to the appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

After the resignation of the non-executive director
member, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors who possess
the appropriate business and financial experience and
skills to understand financial statements. The current
Committee is chaired by Dr. Fong Chi Wah, and the other
Audit Committee members are Mr. Wang Zhongmin and
Mr. Gu Jiawang. Under its terms of reference for audit
committee passed under a directors’ resolution dated 30
June 2005, is required, amongst other things, to oversee
the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s preliminary results, interim results and annual
financial statements and to monitor compliance with
statutory and listing requirements, to engage independent
legal or other advisers as it determines is necessary
and to perform any investigations. The Audit Committee
members held four meetings in 2012.
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Name of Directors Attendance
REHE IR E
Non-executive Director Mr. Li Yuezhong (Resigned on 31 May 2012) 2/2
FHITES FAPRE(EZZE-FHAA=1T—HEHL)
Independent non-executive Dr. Fong Chi Wah — Chairman of Audit Committee 4/4
Directors FEERL -FIESELE
B HITES Mr. Wang Zhongmin 4/4
FTRRESE
Mr. Gu Jiawang 4/4
AREELE
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Financial Statements

The Audit Committee held the meetings to discuss the
Group on the quarterly results, interim results, preliminary
results announcement and Annual Report. The Audit
Committee reviews and discusses the management’s
reports and representations with a view to ensuring
that the Group’s consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and other
legal requirements.

The Audit Committee in conjunction with the external
auditors of the Company has reviewed the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 and has provided advice and comments thereon.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and retention of the
external auditors. The Group engaged RSM Nelson
Wheeler Certified Public Accountants to provide
services in connection with the audit of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and other professional
services.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditors, RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants, is set out as follows:
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Fees paid/payable

RERY AR

HK$’000

Services rendered Bt ENER BT T
Audit services ZE RIS 950
Non-audit services* IERZ B R AR 10
Total: yaxE 960
* The non-audit service fees paid/payable to the external auditors ~ * Bt A NER IR B RIS E - B

were for advice on accounting and taxation matters and for
preparation, review and submission of tax returns.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

An internal control system, being an integral part of the
Company’s operations, is a process effected by the
Board and management team to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations in achieving the established corporate
objectives, safeguarding Company assets, providing
reliable financial reporting, and complying with applicable
laws and regulations.

The Board is responsible for making appropriate
assertions on the adequacy of internal controls over
financial reporting and the effectiveness of disclosure
controls and procedures. Through the Audit Committee,
it regularly reviews the effectiveness of the system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information about the Company’s performance to
shareholders through the publication of quarterly reports
and annual report. In addition to dispatching circulars,
notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional
information is also available to shareholders on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, which
is updated regularly. The annual general meeting provides
a useful forum for shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend annual general meetings for
which the Company gives at least 21 days’ notice. The
Chairman, Directors and external auditors are available
to answer questions on the Company’s businesses
at the meeting. The Company values feedback from
shareholders on its effort to promote transparencies and
foster investor relationships.
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EERSREEE ZBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guan Guisen, aged 49, joined the Company on 28
February 2011. Mr. Guan acts as an executive Director,
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Guan obtained his
bachelor degree from China Central University of Finance
and Economics (FRE&EKE) in 1984 and a master
degree from Graduate School of the People’s Bank of
China (FE ARIRITHHZELEEE) in 1987. Mr. Guan has
over twenty years of senior management experience
in finance, property development and investment in
the PRC. Mr. Guan was a deputy president of Hainan
Technology and Industry Group (SR T&£E) from
1990 to 1994, a deputy president of Taihe Holdings
Co., Ltd. (KRE#EREBR/AF]) from 2001 to 2003 and a
director of China Union Pay Data Services Co., Ltd. (&
BAEE AR /A 8)) from 2002 to 2005. From August 2008,
Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing Dongsen Jinbi
Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (It REHEHZSBIREZ
#HABRA 7)) and a director of China Union Loyalty Co.,
Ltd. (ESREmE AR 2 ). From April 2010, Mr. Guan
became the chairman of Beijing Shangyin Investment
Consultancy Co., Ltd. (BREE (ER) REZDHABRD
|l]). Mr. Guan owns the entire equity interest in Beijing
Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (It 5
HREEBREZAEGRAT), an investment company, which
in turns owned 10.18% equity interest in China Union

Loyalty Co., Ltd. (E/SRE&E AR ).
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EERSREEE ZBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong, aged 47, joined the Company on
28 February 2011. Dr. Lei acts as an executive Director
of the Company. He graduated from Hunan Chenzhou
Normal Institute (#iE@#E/NEHE) in 1983 and obtained a
master degree from Tianjin Normal University (X 2T &8 K
E) in 1991 and a doctoral degree from Graduate School
of People’s Bank of China (hE A REBITHIRAESR) in
1996. Dr. Lei has over 20 years of experience in banking
and electronic payment sectors. He worked as a deputy
section head, section head and deputy department head
of Bank of China, Hunan branch from 1991 to 1997. From
February 1997 to July 2001, Dr. Lei worked for the head
office of China Merchants Bank as an assistant general
manager of treasury planning department, research
department and an deputy general manager of individual
banking department. He joined China Unionpay Co.,
Ltd. (FEISREEIR DB R A F]) in August 2001 until March
2010 initially as its general manager of the strategic
development department and later as its assistant
president. In between his tenure with China Unionpay
Co., Ltd. (T EERE R BR A T), Dr. Lei was also an
executive director of Unionpay Merchant Services Co.,
Ltd. GREARSFS PR F), a director of China Unionpay
Data Services Co., Ltd. ($REEEIEHER A 7)), China Pay
Co., Ltd. (L'BREEFX{JEMR 7)), China Union
Loyalty Co., Ltd. (L/8REEMBER A F]), Guangzhou
Unionpay Network Payment Co., Ltd. (BNSRBE A48 = 1+
APBRA 7)) as well as a director and president of Shanghai
Kayou Information Services Co., Ltd. (L§+& &R
APFRAR]). In April 2010, Dr. Lei is the president of Beijing
Shangyin Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (E$R#i# (1t
) BEZHERAT). He is also a committee member of
Shanghai Financial Arbitration Advising Committee (L&
TRMHEREAZES).
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EERSREEE ZBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, aged 41, joined the Company in
March 2011 and acted as Vice President of the Company.
Mr. Cao was appointed as executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 11 July 2012. Mr.
Cao held a bachelor’s degree in Computer Science from
Shandong University in 1994. And he obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Peking University
in 2006. He worked at Shandong Branch of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Limited, acted as
General Manager in ZErg &SRR BR AR (Jinan Xiande
Technology Limited), Senior Deputy President in £jt{5
(FE) BFRAF] (Fengyuanxin (China) Limited), General
Manager in &R (b ) EFREMTBRAF (Zongheng
Tiandi (Beijing) Information Technology Limited) and
as Vice President in 1t 5158 (k) EFREHKEERA
7] (Beikong Easycode (Beijing) Electric Commerce Ltd).
And from April of 2010, Mr. Cao acts as Vice President
of Beijing Shangyin Investment Consultancy Co., Limited
(FiREE (At3) REZHAER A F). Mr. Cao has over 16
years of financial information technology Internet industry
management experience.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 50, is a Certified Practising
Accountant (Australia), a Chartered Financial Analyst
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Dr. Fong has over 22 years of extensive experience in
various sectors of the financial industry, including direct
investment, project and structured finance, and capital
markets with a focus on the PRC and Hong Kong. Dr.
Fong was previously a director of Baring Capital (China)
Management Limited and held various management
positions in ING Bank. Dr. Fong is currently an executive
director of National Investments Fund Limited and
an independent non-executive director of Ruinian
International Limited, and both companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Fong holds a bachelor’s degree in management
science (economics) from Lancaster University, United
Kingdom, a master’s degree in business administration
from Warwick University, United Kingdom, a master’s
degree in investment management from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, a master’s
degree in practicing accounting from Monash University,
Australia and a doctorate in business administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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EERSREEE ZBEFS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, aged 63, has a diploma in
industrial economic management from A B KR 1%
B (The Correspondence School of Renmin University
of China*). Mr. Wang has over 40 years of experience in
the coal industry. Mr. Wang worked as the deputy section
head of ik TH#IZfE17# 3] (the Finance Department of
the Ministry of Coal Industry*) from 1981 to 1988, the
section head of FEGEEIEE A T BFEER (the Finance
Department in China National Coal Corporation*) from
1988 to 1993, the section head and the deputy head of &
R IT¥IpETF45E 7) (the Finance and Labor Department
of Ministry of Coal Industry*) from 1993 to 1995, the
chairman and the general manager of P =T REAR
&1E/AF] (China Coal Trust Co., Ltd.*) from 1995 to 2002,
the chairman of FEHEEBREMEAE (China Credit
Trust Co., Ltd.”) from 2002 to 2010 and the chairman
of EEESEE AR AR (Harvest Fund Management
Co., Ltd.*) from 2003 to 2011. Mr. Wang is currently a
deputy chairman of FE ik T¥1t#HE (China National
Coal Association®) after his retirement. He was the first
chairman of FE{SFE#£ & (China Trustee Association®).
He was also appointed as the independent director of
LEAREERRMAR AT (Shanghai Datun Energy
Resources Co., Limited”) (stock code: 600508). Mr. Wang
joined the Company in April 2011.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, aged 62, has accumulated profound
knowledge and valuable experience in the mass media
industry. Mr. Gu worked as a senior editor, commentator,
person in charge of the editing section and the head
of the business development department of AK HR
(People’s Daily*). He was also appointed as the chief
executive officer of FEZERBKREZKRBR AT (China
Huawen Investment Holding Company Limited*) which
is held by AR B#R (People’s Daily*), the chairman of A
RETIREBERE(EAT (Zhongtai Trust and Investment
Co., Ltd.*), the chairman of Li8#=# (£E) BREMELD
7] (Shanghai New Huang Pu (Group) Co., Ltd.*) and the
chairman of RIF& KR BR AT (Shenzhen Stock
Times Newspaper Limited*). Mr. Gu graduated from the
Philosophy Department of Nanjing University. He also
obtained a postgraduate diploma after studying two years
at the Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C.
Mr. Gu joined the Company in April 2011.
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HONORABLE CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liu Tinghuan, a famous banker, was appointed as
Honorable Chairman of the Company on 23 October
2011. Mr. Liu was the former chairman of China Unionpay
Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu began his profession in the banking
sector of China from 1960s. Since 1985, Mr. Liu had
served as deputy president, deputy Secretary of the
Party, and then became the president and the Party
Secretary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China. In
2000, Mr. Liu was appointed to the deputy president and
deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of The People’s
Bank of China. Mr. Liu was a committee member of the
Standing Committee of the 10th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
in 2003. He was deputy director of the Economic
Commission, an alternate committee member of the
15th Central Committee of Communist Party of China
and a representative of the 16th National Congress of
Communist Party of China. Mr. Liu served as chairman
of China Unionpay Co., Ltd from 2004 to 2010. Mr. Liu
achieved extraordinary contribution to the development
of China Unionpay and China’s payment industry.

CHIEF ECONOMIC CONSULTANT

Mr. Xia Bin, a famous economist and financial expert
in China, was acted as the Chief Economic Consultant
of the Company on 8 June 2011. He currently serves as
a counselor of the State Council People’s Republic of
China and a director and analyst of Research Institute
of Finance under Development Research Centre of the
State Council, and Chief Consultant of China International
Futures Co., Ltd. Mr. Xia was ever a number of the
Monetary Policy Committee of the People’s Bank of
China, served as a vice director of the Institute of Finance
of the People’s Bank of China, a manager of trading
department of the CSRC, a general manager of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, a person-in-charge of Department
of Policy Research of the People’s Bank of China and
a director of Regulatory of Non-Banking Financial
Organization of the People’s Bank of China. Mr. Xia Bin’s
research primarily covers macro-economic condition;
currency policy; financial regulatory and the development
of the capital market in China. Mr. Xia wrote or edited
a lot of books which are very influential to the capital
markets.

* For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xue Wei, aged 50, joined the Company on 2 May
2012 and acted as Vice President of the Company. After
graduated from the Foreign Language School of the
China International Politic Institute (9Bl EFRBUA 2 Pr)
with major in French in 1985, he was awarded master
degree in business administration by the China Economic
Research Centre of the Peking University and the
FORHDAM University in the United States. Mr. Xue had
worked as manager of China Air Service Ltd, standing
vice general manager of Kingyou Air Transportation
Service Co. (£Rf12=E % AR A7), general manager of
bt TIBEE PR E A 7], general manager of Beijing Bao
Sheng Air Service Company, general manager of & j
BIPR 5 k1T E 2 A |, general manager of air ticketing
department of Mangocity (www.mangocity.com) and vice
president of eLong (www.elong.com). He has 26 years of
extensive experience in the air freight and travel agency
industry in China, involving the research and management
of business travel and e-commerce. Mr. Xue is currently
a standing member of the agency committee under the
China Air Transportation Association (P EfiZERHIHE
K AZEE), and a member of the professional team
under the GLG Councils of the United States.

Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, aged 47, is the qualified
accountant and company secretary of the Company. Mr.
Fung holds an Honours Degree in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

The Directors present their report together with the
audited financial statements of China Innovationpay
Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012.

THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 17 August
1999 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Its
shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM?”)
since 14 April 2000.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the development
and operation of electronic payment tool; (ii) the trading
of computers and communication equipment; and (iii)
the operations of prepaid card business, including the
issuance of various prepaid cards, part of which have
multiple functions, in the PRC. Details of the investments
of the Group are set out in Note 22 to the accompanying
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and segment result
by product category and turnover and segment assets by
geographical location for the year ended 31 December
2012 are set out in Note 7 and 9 respectively to the
accompanying financial statements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 62% of the
Group’s total turnover, while the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for approximately 57% of the
Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted
for approximately 26% of the Group’s total turnover while
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 20% of
the Group’s total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out on page 41 to 45 of this
annual report.

DIVIDEND
The Directors did not recommend the payment of any
dividend (2011: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 38 to the accompanying financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that
is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the directors confirm that
the Company maintained the amount of public float as
required under the GEM Listing rules.

WARRANTS

On 16 July 2012 (after trading hours), the Company and
Senrigan Master Fund (the“Subscriber”) entered into the
Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to issue and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe
for the Warrants, at the Issue Price of HK$0.002 per
Warrant. The Warrants entitle the Subscriber to subscribe
for 300,000,000 Warrant Shares with an aggregate face
value of HK$120 million at the initial Subscription Price of
HK$0.40 per Warrant Share for a period of five (5) years
commencing from the date of issue of the Warrants.

On 27 July 2012, all conditions set out in the Subscription
Agreement had been fulfilled and completed. No listing
of the Warrants will be sought on the GEM or any other
stock exchanges.

As at this report date, no Warrants had been exercised.
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RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 39 to the accompanying financial
statements.

Movements in retained profits and other reserves of the
Group during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 47 of this annual
report.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to its shareholders. However,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
approximately HK$640,060,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Byelaws and the laws in Bermuda in relation
to the issue of new shares by the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
are set out in Notes 22 and 25 respectively to the
accompanying financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Details of the Group’s share option schemes are set out
in Note 40 to the accompanying financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in Note 45
to the accompanying financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Director

Mr. Guan Guisen (Chairman)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong

Mr. Cao Chunmeng (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 11 July 2012)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li Yuezhong
(Resigned on 31 May 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

Mr. Gu Jiawang

In accordance with items 99 and 102A of the Bye-Laws
of the Company, Mr. Cao Chunmeng and Dr. Fong Chi
Wah will retire from office by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guan Guisen, the executive director, has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 February 2011.

Dr. Lei Chunxiong, the executive director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 28 February 2011.

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, the executive director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 11 July 2012.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, the independent non-executive
directors, has entered the service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 19
December 2012.

Although Dr. Fong Chi Wah has served the Company as
an Independent Non-executive Director for more than
nine years, he does not have any management role in the
Company. The Nomination Committee considered that
he has continuously contributed to the Company and
the Board with his relevant experience and knowledge
throughout their years of service and he maintained to
provide an independent view in relation to the Company’s
affairs.
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Mr. Wang Zhongmin, the independent non-executive
director, has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28
April 2011.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, the independent non-executive director,
has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 28 April 2011.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being
proposed for reelection at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Company to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short
positions of the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (i) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

30 China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2012

BYFHITESEEREEHEARRTGTL
B#BHE B=—F——FHNA=-+/\BH
BAM=F -

BYFHTESARECEEAQTT Y
R#HE B-F——FHA=-+T/\BH
wBAM=F -

BROAEFRIRERE SN REERRBFAE
LEREREINRESUWEEAR QTG
NAKREAAR-FRENEECEER
BRI T F UKL Z HRBEHRBEEL -

EENEER
REETERFRFRNEMARFR - AAF -
HEERARSHEEANE R RSB RMNE
NEABEEITTEMEAQRRNEREEM
E%(T\%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%)%ﬁik%éﬁ@i
EEQN o

EENROER

RAREBH > EERAQAHEEMAAE
ELrE(EERFFRERAIZEXVE) 2
B HERO R EERET  BEE()RE
EE RIS EOIEXVERETRSD S ANE
AARRBRFIzEEZRAR (BIERE
EERHE KRB HIMER IR AR
BrRERRAR) R ()VRBEXESRPE
16- 151 25 35216 1R T 8 5 N 5Z A% FIT i &< 52
ZREESRA 5 (i) RIERIEMNR =R Al
FEL5.46E507TIREBEZTETESRIZ
REBANEARRARBIMEESAR
mE



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEREE
Long position in Shares RRGBZ2HE
Interest in
Interest in underlying Total interest %
Name of Directors shares shares in shares Shareholding
REER 7 RRG

EE=E8B R 2 s o 2B REs RERDL

Mr. Guan Guisen (Note 1) 1,286,450,000 375,000,000 1,661,450,000 35.30%

BEREEMFT 1)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong 47,180,000 - 47,180,000 1%

BAgE LT

Mr. Cao Chunmeng 47,620,000 19,800,000 67,420,000 1.43%

BEHEPHLEE (Note 2)

(#f3t 2)
Dr. Fong Chi Wah - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
FEERL (Note 2)

(#fat 2)
Mr. Wang Zhongmin - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
FTRAREE (Note 2)

(#fat 2)
Mr. Gu Jiawang - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
BERLE (Note 2)

(#fat 2)

Note 1:  These shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises  #at 1 ZZ R4 EMighty Advantage Enterprises
Limited (“Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is Limited ([ Mighty Advantage |) 358 ©
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially Mighty Advantage BREEBE ZF BT
owned by Mr. Guan Guisen. Mighty Advantage is deemed MRLALHEEREEZEESHEEN
to be interest in 375,000,000 shares through its interest A\ o Mighty AdvantageZ&EBFE A
in the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of A\ E #1774~ £ £8120,000,000 7% T 2
HK$120,000,000. Adding the 1,286,450,000 shares held AR ES o 3R B35 375,000,000
by Mighty Advantage, Mighty Advantage is deemed to B B 13 o 0 £ B Mighty Advantage
be interested in 1,661,450,000 shares of the Company. ¥ B 1,286,450,000 f% B& 10 > Mighty
1,286,450,000 shares held by Mighty Advantage are Advantage #& % % ¥ 5 1,661,450,000
27.33% of the issued share capital of the Company. BREZ A TR o Mighty Advantageida

1,286,450,000/R R 15 A D A B BITR
#27.33% °

Note 2:  The Company granted the share options under New Share A& 2: ARTARZZE-—_FtANAREMNE
Option Scheme on 6 July 2012. RREH BB LS BIRE -

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable FREXWEESI  REERATAN S

Date, none of the Directors of the Company had any SR 782 &)=k B (F{a H L B (£ % R &%

interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying > RBEREIEXVER) @7 - 1HE

shares or debentures of the Company or any of its BRHOREEEF - HE()VRIEESRBE

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV #&BIEXVE 7R 8% Sh A ME A A 5 K&

of the SFO), which (i) were required to be notified to the — B¥3X P 2 B 50X & (BIEARIERE 75 R 4

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions E{&BIGEIR S BIERGL B H 2

7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and ~ R#2) 5 Si(i)iRIEH 5 & B & FIE 352

short positions which they were taken or deemed to have ¥ Brc A s fm FTall 5 50 il 2 2 2 3%

under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, =& ; F(ii)RIFERIFKR EHRAE5.46 %

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into 567 EEEERTESER S ZHEAHM

the register referred to therein; or (iii) were required, exN\FRETH ZRESRLE o

pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to securities transactions b\é Directors to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at the date of this report,
there was no other person (other than a director or chief
executive officer of the Company) who had any interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be

kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

R ZMAERG)DETHEN

BEmRERRR

BRTXAREES - RABRERH - BE
N EMRIECRE 5 R BE RG] FE 3361k E 17
MECMARLE  BEAMAL(RAF
ESRFETRAERIN) REQBHR
D RABROD T EEEAEERAE -

Long Positions in Shares RRGOZHR
Interest in
Interest in underlying Total interest %
Name of Directors shares shares in shares Shareholding
RERERH RERH

E=E1E RIRG 2 x 2R 2R RET D

Mr. Guan Guisen (Note 1) 1,286,450,000 375,000,000 1,661,450,000 35.30%

BEREE (M 1)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong 47,180,000 - 47,180,000 1%

BAEIE L

Mr. Cao Chunmeng 47,620,000 19,800,000 67,420,000 1.43%

BEHEREE (Note 2)

(#f3t 2)
Dr. Fong Chi Wah - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
HEEEL (Note 2)

(HfaZ 2)
Mr. Wang Zhongmin - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
FTRREE (Note 2)

(1t 2)
Mr. Gu Jiawang - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
BEMEE (Note 2)

(#f3t 2)

Note 1:  These shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises Azt 1.  ZZR{HEMighty Advantage Enterprises
Limited (“Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is Limited ([ Mighty Advantage |) 558 °
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially Mighty Advantage B EBELEH ST
owned by Mr. Guan Guisen. Mighty Advantage is deemed MY HESEREE2EERHEEN
to be interest in 375,000,000 shares through its interest AT o Mighty Advantage & #EHE K
in the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of A 7] B % 1774~ £ %8 120,000,000 % 7T 2
HK$120,000,000. Adding the 1,286,450,000 shares held AR ES - R A5 H 375,000,000
by Mighty Advantage, Mighty Advantage is deemed to B B £ o hn £ #H Mighty Advantage
be interested in 1,661,450,000 shares of the Company. # H 1,286,450,000 f% B% 15 » Mighty
1,286,450,000 shares held by Mighty Advantage are Advantage # 1 % 55 1,661,450,000
27.33% of the issued share capital of the Company. BEZA TR © Mighty Advantageld s

1,286,450,000/ 8 RME A D A EBITR
727.33% ©
Note 2:  The Company granted the share options under New Share ffiz2: ARATDRZZE——F+A AREHE
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EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has Share Option Scheme C and New
Share Option Scheme (collectively called “Share Option
Scheme”).

Share Option Scheme C was adopted by the Company
at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2002 and
was refreshed at Annual General Meeting held on 28 April
2011. The valid is for 10 years.

New Share Option Scheme was adopted at the annual
general meeting held 3 May 2012 and is valid for 5 years.
After which period no further options will be granted but
the provisions of this scheme shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects.

Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants hereunder for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest.

Pursuant to Share Option Scheme, the Company may
grant options to the participants of Share Option Scheme
to subscribe for ordinary shares of $0.01 each, subject to,
when aggregated under this scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time to time. The
subscription price will be determined by the Company’s
Board of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the nominal value of the ordinary shares, (ii) the average
of the closing price of the ordinary shares quoted on the
GEM on the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and (iii) the closing price of ordinary shares
quoted on the GEM on the date of grant, which must be
a business day. An offer of an option shall be deemed to
have been granted and accepted when a duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
participant, together with a remittance of HK$1 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the
Company within a period of 21 days from the date of
offer.

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
person who has contributed to, or can contribute to the
Group’s business value and/or technology from product
development, sales and marketing, manufacturing to
enhancing efficiency of operation to take up options to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company.

B S BIAER 2
RN R)RA B IRAERT SIC K B IR AE AT &
(SefEl R iERt &l ]) -

BREFEIACR-"ZZT-FHA=-F\H
HONBRRBEFRSLRMN IR
——FNAZ+NHEBRNBRRBERS
EH - BRESTEICAERMATE -

HBRESFEIR - - —_FHA=RAET
MRRBFEAE LEBRR - BRMAS
FoHRE  MTISE-—DPREBRE  H
$Z%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁiméﬁiﬂ
KRB -

BRAERT EIHAT -

BRESESED/AEEFLERNZ
HERURBIRER HEAEEHRE
RIEREES AT » WRSIHAREBREE
BEARENEALRABEENALE
iR e

RIBEIRAESTE > 207 7 [0 8B IR e 2
ZMERBAIHEZEARDQ RO ER
¥ URBESREAEOI THEBR »
PRAZEZT BRI EREARGTERADQT
12 A] HL b B AR AE 51 81 7T 3R B8 AV 12 AR 1D
% TEEBEBARAAERFDBITRMEE
30% - AP EEELESECREE B
FERAUTEENESE @ ((ZTBRE
B (€WNBEREAPAAEEXAEE
IR R ZEAR TR F W E 5 R(ii)R
REAB(MEAEER)ZTBERERIZER
PRI HE - RSHEERLEBENE
BRELLFXBEBHRGER > BERAKRA
B HBREN21 B RUEN B TRE
% BRENSHERECKRERER-

ESTERNBAFEMYAREENER
BER RERFERLN HERTSHE
BEREBERMB AL ER U INAEE
MEMALTEABRE - URBARFN
BER -
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No participant shall be granted an option which would
result in the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all the options granted and to be
granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant representing in
aggregate over 1 per cent. of the total number of shares
in issue.

0

34

Details of the options under Share Option Scheme
C during the year ended 31 December 2012 were as

S HEERBTEHCERRETERN
FrEBRE(BEETE CEHEREAR
ITENBRE) MERTRATRITHR
NEE  BRHUZEBREZA(BER
Hz ) EsHEA12E B LBED
BRITRHBE1% » AITERZBALR
B AR AE o

) HEz—=——-—F+=-A=+-H
ILFERBEBRETECREMNE

follows: IRREFESEMAT ¢
At Granted  Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2012 the year the year the year 2012
K-E--f Ehig/ i 2
Rt B s i3 | -f-H ERRH &M ERfiE T=A=1-H
Share Option Scheme C
FREEC
QOther persons
HfiAT
14 May 2002 14 May 2003 to HK$0.1883 750,000 - (750,000) - -
13 May 2012
“ZECERATMA FESERIATMAZ 0.1883%7T
ZE-ZERRT=H
13 August 2008 13 August 2009 to HK$0.06 1,714,583 - (1,714,583) - -
12 August 2018
“EZN\ENATZR  ZEEAENATZHE 0.06%7
ZE-\ENATZH
10 November 2009 10 November 2010 to HK$0.1026 38,750,000 - (3,750,000 (35,000,0000) -
9 November 2019
“ZEAET-BTE ZE-BET-BTAZ 010267
“E-nET-ANA
Total share options
ERELY 41,214,583 - (6214583 (35,000,000 -
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Details of the options under New Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2012
were as follows:

Iy MBE-s-—-—F+=-HB=+-—8H
I FERBHMBRESSRENE
IRREGEISEMANT ¢

At Granted  Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2012 the year the year the year 2012
H-2--f Ehitg/ H-2-2f
RiiAH 8 fikE -B-A FREL XH ERTE +=A=1-H
New Share Option Scheme
SR
Directors and Chief
Executives
ENER G U]
6 July 2012 6July 2013 to HK$0.25 - 6,840,000 - - 6,840,000
“E-"EtARA 5July 2017 0.25%7
“E-ZEtARRAE
“E-t5tREA
6 July 2014 1o HK$0.25 - 6,840,000 - - 6,840,000
5July 2017 0.25%7
“E-MELARAE
“E-t5tREA
6 July 201510 HK$0.25 - 9,120,000 - - 9,120,000
5July 2017 0.25%7
“E-1EtARAE
“E-t5tREA
Other employees
EftfEE
6 July 2012 6.July 2013 1o HK$0.25 - 54477000 - - 54477,000
“E-ZEtARA 5July 2017 0.25%7
“E-ZEtBRRAE
“E-t5tREA
6 July 2014 to HK$0.25 - 54477000 - - 54477,000
5July 2017 0.25%7
“E-MELARAE
“E-t5tREA
6 July 201510 HK$0.25 - 72,636,000 - - 72,636,000
5July 2017 0.25%7
“E-1EtARAE
“E-t5tREA
Total share options
RRELY - 204,390,000 - - 204,300,000

TEEFXNEEERAR ¢ — T~ —FFR
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with the standards of good practice concerning
the general management responsibilities of the Board of
Directors as set out in Chapter 5 of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout year ended 31 December 2012.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group is set out on pages 163
and 164 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITORS
On 30 December 2010, RSM Nelson Wheeler Certified
Public Accountants (“RSM”) was appointed.

RSM will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint RSM as
the auditor of the Company.

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012 have been audited by RSM.

By Order of the Board

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZEEHREE

@ RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA INNOVATIONPAY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Innovationpay Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 41 to 162, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

HE

B PEANXAKREERAT
2R
(REFEZMAL ZBERAA])

&ﬂiﬁeﬁ?qﬂlﬁﬂ%ﬁs‘zﬁ%lﬁffﬁﬂﬂ
(E2R] ERENBLARSKEN &S
B )ERNEMNEF12E 2GS HIER
* BYEER-ZE—-F+ZA=1+—
Hr&GakAaBBEMRREK BE2ZEB L
FEZHEEVAR - ZFEE2EBAER R
ERGEHREESEENEREK UK
BASTTHEBER H MR -

ESHRAMBRR 2SR

BEARESABREBSTTMASRM 2
BFBYBMELER R EB QARG ZIWE
%E;E URESRATRHEGS VB ®R

EEOACNERER BERRENRE
"’"$HNRZ%A@M‘%#&%’% LIRS
MBBRAFHEERERBIL (R wEA
HFFEEREREIEE) ©
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B ZBEHREE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZEEHREE

Basis for qualified opinion

As detailed in note 41(d)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed the disposal
of SYSCAN Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “SHL Group”) on 28 December
2011 (“Date of Completion”). The corresponding figures in
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2011 and note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements reflect a gain on disposal of discontinued
operation of HK$41,320,000.

As set out in our independent auditor’s report dated
28 March 2012, our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 was qualified on the basis that there
were no alternative audit procedures that we could satisfy
ourselves that the carrying amounts in respect of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of SHL Group were
free from material misstatement as at 1 January 2011
and the Date of Completion; and any adjustments found
to be necessary to these amounts would affect the net
assets of the Group as at 1 January 2011, and the related
disclosures in note 41(d)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the movement in the Group’s cash flows
and the Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2011. Our opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the current year is also modified because
of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability
of the current year’s figures and the corresponding
figures.

REBEERZEE

AN AR A B A R R B EE 41 (d) (i) Fr st
RZE——F+ZA=Z+NBUTEK
HH|) » &% B %K HESYSCAN
Holdings Limited } E & 2 & (48] SHL
£8)) - BEZZE——F+ZHA=1+—H
IEFEZHRERARZHESEFTURGS
MERERMF16IRMEEC KR IEREE
7% 2 W 41,320,00058 T °

HMBHRA-—ZE——F=A=-+N\HZH
NREMREEE 0 BMHYE SEEH
EE——F+-A=1+—HLEEFEEZH
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FAY EEMEZREFIFERFEHSHL
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Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the
corresponding figures as described in the basis for
qualified opinion paragraphs, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2012, and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements relating to the tax impact of implementation
of the Pilot Scheme for replacing business tax with value-
added-tax on the Group’s financial performance of
prepaid cards operations. One of the key assumptions
that management had made when performing impairment
test of goodwill related to prepaid cards operations at end
of reporting period is that the relevant future tax payable
under the Pilot Scheme would not be more than what
would have been paid under the old business tax system.
Should the actual execution of Pilot Scheme causing the
Group to pay more tax than they previously did, goodwill
with carrying amount of HK$727,327,000 related to
prepaid cards operations would be subject to impairment
and the resulting impairment would be recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. We consider that the material
uncertainty has been adequately disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements and our opinion is not
qualified in this respect.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

malAx
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HILFE
2012 2011
- —E2——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Myat FHET FET
Continuing operations FEREER
Turnover R 7 212,805 263,095
Cost of sales HERAR (131,374) (177,992)
Gross profit EF 81,431 85,103
Other income HAig A 8 7,031 3,136
Selling expenses SHERX (5,353) (8,469)
Administrative expenses TR (45,681) (42,912)
Other operating expenses Hisepx 18 (6,000) (43)
Equity-settled share-based RIEEE R
payment EENE e (6,022) -
Profit from operations EFEBR 25,406 36,815
Finance costs BE A 10 (12,371) (1,186)
Share of losses of associates PMEEE D TREE - (100)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled 75— 4]
entity BEENEE - (1,117)
Impairment of goodwill AERE (160,499) -
Impairment of an associate — Bt N BRUE (822) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—REBAT
Wik - 2,727
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EBA T
g - (319)
Gain on revaluation of previously B LR HE S
held interest in jointly controlled BREfSEER
entities ol 41(b) - 8,451
Gain on fair value change of ENSARERLFE
contingent consideration BN
payable 35 252,640 230,986
Gain on bargain purchase on ERSOEERE
business combination g 41(b) - 3,423
Profit before tax R A1 5= A 104,354 279,684
Income tax expense FriEfip 11 (12,757) (15,760)
Profit for the year from TEEHEREER
continuing operations Ve A 12 91,597 263,924
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEK
Profit for the year from AKEEFDRIELE
discontinued operation EaA 16 - 14,926
Profit for the year REEEF 91,597 278,850
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWAR
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"HBILFE
2012 2011
8- C—B——F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Myat FExT FET
Attributable to: LU AL B4
Owners of the Company ¥ NEIE 2PN
Profit from continuing FrB RS ER R T
operations 91,362 264,586
Profit from discontinued EARIERERER
operation g - 18,485
Profit for the year attributable to VNN Y =N
owners of the Company FEREF 15 91,362 283,071
Non-controlling interests RS
Profit/(loss) from continuing FREKEER
operations wAL(EE) 235 (662)
Loss from discontinued EARIEREEK
operation i - (3,559)
Profit/(loss) for the year IR R R
attributable to non-controlling FEREF
interests (E518) 235 (4,221)
91,597 278,850
HK cents HK cents
Al A
Earnings per share BRER 17
From continuing and discontinued = REFEKSLRSKILE
operations RExER
— basic —HIK 2.07 8.13
— diluted -8 2.07 6.06
From continuing operations REFBELEER
- basic — &K 2.07 7.60
— diluted — 8 2.07 5.66
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEZEBRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2012 2011
—e—=—5F5 —F——F
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FERT

Profit for the year EEERF 91,597 278,850
Other comprehensive income: Hit2EWA :
Exchange differences on translating BEEINER 2

foreign operations 5 ZE2E 10,637 48,267
Exchange differences reclassified to profit HEMBARBEHRFEE

or loss on disposals of subsidiaries BaeERERE - (5,214)
Other comprehensive income for the FRAEHMBEZEBA -

year, net of tax HBRBLE 10,637 43,053
Total comprehensive income for the FAZHWALEE

year 102,234 321,903
Total comprehensive income for the FAUTATEGEZE

year attributable to: IR A\ 4E5E -

Owners of the Company RAREER A 101,999 326,124

Non-controlling interests FEIER RS 235 (4,221)

102,234 321,903
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

At 31 December 2012

R-F——F+=—_A=1+7H

2012 2011
—E——F —2——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MisE FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERZRE 19 5,660 6,137
Long term deposits REAER 29 27,421 -
Due from an associate FEUR — RS B A R FRE 25 4,106 -
Intangible assets BEEE 23 8,639 4,386
Goodwill SRS 24 940,671 1,092,372
Investments in associates REENTZ2RE 25 - 822
Fixed deposits EHFER 30 - 12,340
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 37 1,866 1,851
988,363 1,117,908
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 27 2,109 2,158
Trade receivables FEURBRTR 28 60,879 70,804
Prepayments, deposits and other JEEIE C e R
receivables HibpEUFh 29 55,205 56,480
Due from an associate FEUR — e B N BRI TN IE 25 - 2,914
Bank and cash balances SRITRIRE AR 31 143,425 157,744
Tax recoverable AR @ IE 1,869 -
263,487 290,100
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FEASBRFR 32 10,749 18,146
Accruals and other payables FRREARAEMEN
Zh1g 33 95,885 116,216
Due to a director FEt—REENIE 34 5,000 -
Current tax liabilities BNEARiIEEE 5,057 9,247
116,691 143,609
Net current assets REBEEFE 146,796 146,491
Total assets less current liabilities @S ERATERE 1,135,159 1,264,399
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 37 - 1,253
Contingent consideration payable FEAEARE 35 - 472,848
Convertible bonds AR ES 36 73,409 -
73,409 474,101
NET ASSETS BEEZFE 1,061,750 790,298
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R R

At 31 December 2012

RZZE——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
—g-——F —=——F&
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
et THERT FHET
Capital and reserves ERXRH#E
Share capital [N 38 47,071 39,646
Reserves 5 39 1,014,591 750,799
Equity attributable to owners of the  ZNA TG A FE(LRER
Company 1,061,662 790,445
Non-controlling interests FER RS 88 (147)
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,061,750 790,298

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2013

Director Director
EE EE
MR. GUAN GUISEN DR. LEI CHUNXIONG
BERLE EAEEL

RIZBE—=F=ZA=+tHEEE=SHE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B FEARIR AR

At 31 December 2012

RZE——F+=-—A=+—H

2012 2011
=T = == — —
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
e FHET FE&T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R RERE 244 317
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 22 1,000,088 1,018,088
1,000,332 1,018,405
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other JBAEE - 2ER
receivables H iUk 3,823 6,517
Due from subsidiaries FEUREf B A BIFIE 22 135,305 140,305
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE LR 535 900
139,663 147,722
Current liabilities REBAE
Due to a director B —RBESEHIE 34 5,000 -
Due to subsidiaries FEHE A T FIE 22 795 795
Accruals and other payables TEIRE AN HAE(S
I1E 1,218 2,107
7,013 2,902
Net current asset REEEFE 132,650 144,820
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 1,132,982 1,163,225
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible bonds R ES 36 73,409 -
Contingent consideration payable FENAEARE 35 - 472,848
73,409 472,848
NET ASSETS BEESE 1,059,573 690,377
Capital and reserves BEERNGHE
Share capital AN 38 47,071 39,646
Reserves 1B 39 1,012,502 650,731
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,059,573 690,377

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2013

R-B-=Z5=ZA-ttRKESSHE

Director
EE
MR. GUAN GUISEN
BERLE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

eEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Attributable to owners of the Company

BE_T——Ff+-A=1+—HIFE

KAREEARE
Retained
Share Share-  Convertible profits/ Non-
Share  premium Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange option honds equity Warrant (accumulated controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests equity
TaRES REEH/
kA ROEEE  EAEE  iERE  ENRE BRERE  EGRE JREREE (2HER) B8 FERER  EGEE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
T#En TEn Thn TiEn T T T Tin T T T T
At1 January 2011 RZ5--F-F-H 26,409 90,647 192,665 439 4617 3,158 - - (267,158) 50837 43,012 93,849
Total comprehensive income  £R2EMALE
for the year - - - - 43,053 - - - 283,071 326,124 (4221) 321,908
Transfer to statutory reserve EBEETHE - - - 3801 - - - - (3,801) - - -
Share issued from placing ~ BEFERGRA
[note 38(2) (H:350a) 6250 17569 - - - - - - T - 1896
Issuance of convertible bonds &7 TERES - - - - - - 66,922 - - 66,922 - 66,922
Conversion of comvertible AT ERES
bonds 4800 142,088 - - - - (66,922) - - 79,966 - 79,966
Disposals of subsidiaries ~ HEKBAT - - (192,665 - - - - - 192,665 - (39,180) (39,180)
Acquisiion of subsidiaries ~ WEKEBAT 2,187 85,313 - - - - - - - 87,500 1,625 89,125
Purchase of non-controlling B ASEEERER
interests - - &) - - - - - - s Y 6
At 31 December 2011 AZE--F
tZA=t-8 39,646 493,744 2,850) 4240 47,730 3,158 - - 204777 790,445 (147) 790,298
At1 January 2012 R-E-ZE-F-H 39,646 493,744 2,850) 4240 47,730 3,158 - - 204777 790,445 (147) 790,298
Total comprehensive income  ERZEMA
for the year g - - - - 10,637 - - - 91,362 101,999 23 102,234
Transferto statutory reserve. BB HEEE - - - 3882 - - - - (3882) - - -
Release upon lapse of share BB RRFE MBS
options f#h - - - - - (379) - - 379 - - -
Share-based payments  HRAXAFE - - - - - 6,022 - - - 6,022 - 6,022
Issuance of convertible bonds %7 AT BKRES - - - - - - 33804 - - 33804 - 33,804
Conversion of convertble ~ HATARES
bonds 7075 140,29 - - - - (22,09 - - 125,218 - 125,278
Exercise of share options {7 EEEIRE 350 6,020 - - - 219 - - - 3501 - 3501
Issuance of unlisted wanants %473 LR ER
(note 39(i) (Hkaggi) - - - - - - - 523 - 523 - 5
At 31 December 2012 3
+2A=1-8 47,07 640,060 2,850) 8,122 58,367 6,022 1,711 523 292,63 1,061,662 88 1,061,750

PRHAFZNEEERAR ¢ —E—_FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

| ===
%AIE S /)ILE-’FE‘%:Z
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"BLFE

2012 2011
=2-=-F —Z——5F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000

(I FHET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING &£&ZHHRLRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PR AR A
Continuing operations SIERE L 104,354 279,684
Discontinued operation DRIEEEEK - 14,926
Adjustments for: PMUT BIAFE
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  ##HFE{ L ib
payments HENE - 1,570
Finance costs A& KA 12,371 3,764
Share of loss of a jointly controlled 45— E12 4|
entity BiEEE - 1,117
Share of losses of associates DIEEE A TEE - 538
Interest income FEWA (3,889) (1,695)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEY¥% - BER
and equipment .&ﬁzréﬁa 198 2,628
Impairment loss on trade and JE Uit Bl 3k I EL At FE UK
other receivables FIEREEE 774 679
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AT 2 - (44,504)
Gain on revaluation of previously B ATREE
held interest in jointly controlled EHIERmEE
entities RS > s - (8,451)
Gain on bargain purchase on EBSHREWRE
business combination U % - (3,423)
Gain on fair value change of RS AKERFE
contingent consideration 2B
payable (252,640)  (230,986)
Derecognition of financial liabilities — #& - 2B K& & - (38)
Equity-settled share-based IR AE4 %foﬁiﬁ
payments g 6,022 -
Depreciation e 2,562 5,944
Impairment of goodwill EESNERE 160,499 -
Impairment of an associate — B E N BRE 822 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BiEEBEEE 569 -
Operating profit before working EEESEHI oKL
capital changes oyl 31,642 21,753
Decrease in inventories FERYD 49 1,056
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEUR BR TR A
receivables (5 40) 9,151 (63,935)
(Increase)/decrease in FEAFIE B:%}Si
prepayments, deposits and /JﬂzJ?EH& X
other receivables (38m) (18,664) 37,025
(Decrease)/increase in trade FE(SBRFR ORI )/
payables 120 (7,397) 1,249
(Decrease)/increase in accruals TRIZE AN H AR
and other payables BRFX GREA) /184 (20,331) 27,745
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERETREBRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

2012 2011
—B——-F ZZE——F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
izt FET FET

Cash flows (used in)/generated from &« (FrA) Fr8

operations RERE (5,550) 24,893

Interest received 2 WFE 3,889 1,695

Tax paid EAHIE (20,065) (3,284)

Interest paid EAFE (88) (3,630)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KESE(FTA) P8

operating activities BeREFE (21,814) 19,674
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ®REZBEHRLSHKE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BAYE - BER

equipment Bl 19 (2,241) (24,324)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEY¥% - BER

plant and equipment BEFTSRIE - 1,808
Additions to construction in progress FEEZ IR - (89,750)
Additions to intangible assets nEBFEE 23 (4,739) (4,386)
Additions to investments in NEREEE QT

associates ®RE - (246)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g NG 41(a),(b) - (27,685)
Purchase of non-controlling interests A JEE s 41(c) - (4,233)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMBATFRE

subsidiaries FiE 41(d) - 3,682
Decrease in held-to-maturity SEFH B EE

financial assets A - 5,928
Repayment from jointly controlled HEHZEHIEREN

entities - 390
Decrease/(increase) in fixed deposits EHEFURA ~(120) 12,340 (12,340)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B E#HEITERRD - 27,066
Advance to associates A THRE DR B (1,192) (2,914)
Repayment from an associate — RS ATIER - 155
Loans to third-parties BTE=FER 29 (7,482) -
Net cash flows used in investing BETEARS

activities FTREFE (3,314) (76,849)

TEAF X NEEAR AT ¢ —T——FFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

%ITAIEJ 37 /)Ib;iﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE_T——F+-_A=1—"HBILFE

2012 2011
—E——F —E2——F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
MI&E FHET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING mEZEHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Issuance of unlisted warrant i‘éﬁ#t G T 523 -
Proceeds from exercise of share TEBRERSESIE
options 3,591 -
Proceeds from placement BlEREIRE - 181,946
New bank loans raised HiERITER 4,750 -
Advance from a director —BEEHBH 5,000 -
Repayment to a non-controlling IR IR RIER
shareholder - (12,795)
Repayment of bank loans and other $R1T&F K
loan Hib & B (4,750) (38,444)
Net cash flows generated from METHFBEERE
financing activities HEE 9,114 130,707
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN Iﬁ,ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W) EnEEE (16,014) 73,532
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREFETEFHE
changes, net 1,695 2,182
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HW—AB—HzZHZK
AT 1 JANUARY HEeZEEY 157,744 82,030
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®W+=ZH=+—Bz
AT 31 DECEMBER HeRBESEEY 143,425 157,744
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND RERBSEEYIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRBE R 143,425 157,744
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HILFE
GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —HREHR
The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with ARARARBREEMALZER
limited liability. The address of its registered office is NF - HEfE RN Canon’s
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton
Bermuda and its principal place of business is Unit HM 12, Bermuda @ THE F E& i
2708, 27/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, AR BRBERKEBETIEFIR
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the FO27H82708E © RATRMDES
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange BHERXZAAERAR (MBI
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). BIZEAR £ e
The Company is an investment holding company. RRARRREZERAT  HWEA
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out AZETEXEBH NI BREMTE
in note 22 to the financial statements. 22
ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. R&MHEFFIRLIEFTE BT

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2012. HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”);
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The
Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations
and financial position.

PR

== R PN

RAFE  ZEBERABTBSHE
NE([EBEFMAS]) FAEM -
BIH MR YN T ——F—
A-—BRBzE8FEENZHR
BHE REERT BB B E2EL
([EBMBHREED ) - HBEMK
BEZRABFEEBMBHREER
([EBMBHRELER ] - BBS
ER([EBEER ) REE - %
M2 SRR RSB B RMBWE
EQAWBMEFAREB S BRURK
REEHBEFERE ZSEEN
BEAEE -

REEYNEE AT BM B REXR
ZHBERMBHRELED c XEEHCS
EFHEZSH BB BREEL
ZRE R BRAEE HAEH
BBMRBREENSEHALEX
AR BARABRERTE -

|
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

3.

52

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO
TAX IMPACT OF IMPLEMENTATION OF
THE PILOT SCHEME FOR REPLACING

BUSINESS TAX WITH VALUE-ADDED-TAX

Starting from September 2012, Beijing has become
the pilot area for replacing business tax with
value-added-tax (“Pilot Scheme”). The Group’s
major subsidiary, Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial
Management Co. Ltd. which is principally engaged
in provision of prepaid cards and related customer
services operations, started to pay value-added-
tax under the Pilot Scheme with effective on 1
September 2012.

On 10 September 2012, an announcement F8f
#i[2012]21493% jointly made by Finance Bureau
of Beijing (3t XM /Z), State Administration of
Taxation - Beijing Municipal Office (It R EIZRF
7% /@) and Beijing Local Taxation Bureau (3t =™
5 #1715 /&) mentioned the transitional financial
assistance policy (@& 48 BER#FECR) for those
enterprises which actually paid more value-added-
tax under the Pilot Scheme than they previously
would have paid under the old business tax system.

At the date of these financial statements, the Group
has engaged a tax representative to (i) initiate the
communication with relevant tax authorities for
agreeing on proper value-added-tax treatment
in future; and (ii) apply for transitional financial
assistance according to the announcement T8 7%
[2012] 2149%% to mitigate any unfavorable impact
when paying value-added-tax under the Pilot
Scheme.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2012

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

BEETHTUBERBERE
EHE B ERRZ
EXTRERZE

B-Z—_FAA# » 5B
BERBAEXERNATHE (&
7atE)) - AEEZEEZMBEAF
tRSEEEEEERARAE (M1
REER|)ERNREREHAN IR
HEEFBRHEERL  AMR=-F
——F N A - BRBREATE
BB ER -

RZZ2——FhA+H =M
BE - tEmERBERERIEET
ERERHLBRBEASE (KB
[2012]2149%%) » EFREMEHZE
RBERTTEER BT EEB Z R
DA RBEEEB G EAMITEE
fIRZE - RIS BE M B IBRIFEUR

R HERBE  ~FEECSZE
BERKX L) EEBBRBEERRE
HER UHEEENBARIZEER
BEFE  R(i)iREREF[2012]
2149%F 2 N & B FBIE M B B ik
By - EFEIRBR T A TIBE
BEEE 2 MARISE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

3.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO
TAX IMPACT OF IMPLEMENTATION OF
THE PILOT SCHEME FOR REPLACING
BUSINESS TAX WITH VALUE-ADDED-TAX

(Cont’d)

The Group’s financial performance of prepaid
cards operations would largely depend on the
future actual value-added-tax paid under the
Pilot Scheme and the actual amount of financial
assistance to be received, if any. As set out in
note 5(d) to the consolidated financial statements,
one of the key assumptions that management
had made when performing impairment test of
goodwill related to prepaid cards operations at end
of reporting period is that the relevant future tax
payable under the Pilot Scheme would not be more
than what would have been paid under the old
business tax system. Should the actual execution
of Pilot Scheme causing the Group to pay more
tax than they previously did, goodwill with carrying
amount of HK$727,327,000 related to prepaid
cards operations would be subject to impairment
and the resulting impairment would be recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of contingent consideration
payables which is carried at its fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
the directors to exercise its judgements in the
process of applying the accounting policies. The
areas involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the
financial statements.

B

EE——F+-A=1+—HItFE

+= —=

EHETHATUREHRERE
¥Rt R BEEER
BERATEEERZE#E)

AEBEMNFER 2UBREBR
RERE FBURR R RBIBRTEE
ERSMHNEERSE(NE) o #
MERE M BRRMITSA)FE > B
BEERBREHRETEMN FEKHE
BeEBERENEmEE2EER
22— AREBEARRATEES
HEHERRTE SR IRBEEEER
STEIENNEEE - AT ENE
BHTSAEERIABEUEERH
B BREMFEEEEZRE
{8727,327,00058 ST FRE © B
EEZREBNGERRER -

BERETTEER
REPBRBRDRBEETBEAMD
SFEME B BREER - BB
NARGE R AR BRI (A
EMR ) ES EHRRREB QA
Pl BRMBERERR

REPBHBRDRIBEL RAREE
mE - LR H QP E R B
FARREERBFLIERT o

RSB BMBRE LR 2B
WRACHETERRERMAE
NEEEERNEASTHRE ZBRE
A I o 3 % BR SR Y B 2 88
HEHZENBRRBEA ZBR

hEt 28 - R BERME5H

& o

TREEFXNEEERAR ¢ T —FFR 53



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)
The significant accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these financial statements are set out
below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the
Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a
subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus
the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share
of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances
and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2012

B

E_T——F+_A=1—HItFE
BEREFTHER®)

REZEVEBRREERZTES
STECRESIAT o

(a)

HEMRE
REMBBRREFELALQT
REMBLArRABET A
St-BLEZHB®EEK -
MEAREAEEERES
ER - ZHEEAEX
BE-RAEEUBREEK
R UREHZERK B EA
i RFEAKEREHESR
BEHER  SERREES
FRATERTERZEE
RRERHESE -

MEBLREEGEEEER
SEzABFEAAR  AHE
EHEKLLE2BEBELRES
N

HE—BMBLRAEHKE
EHE s WS ERE()HE
REZAFEMZMELQE
BEEMAREZDVE &
(VAR AEEZMBRAE
EFEMERAZMNEBLEZ
EASRTEHERENEER
FHE BB 8 -

EERLABEZRS - &ER
R ARBIEN T T LA o
BRIEXRZREBE  BRA
BZEEHBRE  TAIK
SHEEETTUHE - 8
RAZEHNHRCEEFER
B DERETSAEERMN
ZERTHER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (Cont’d)

Non-controlling interests represent the
equity in subsidiaries not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

56

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(b)

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services
are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The
fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary were
recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, available-for-sale investment),
the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on
the same basis as would be required if the
previously held equity interest were disposed
of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill
(Cont’d)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment
or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The
method of measuring impairment losses of
goodwill is the same as that of other assets
as stated in the accounting policy (w) below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition
for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policies of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the
Group has significant influence.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c)

Associates (Cont’d)

Investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements by
the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment
and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in reserves
is recognised in the consolidated reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Cont’d)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an
associate that results in a loss of significant
influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share
of the net assets of that associate plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity that is
subject to joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over
the economic activity when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to
the activity require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control (the “venturers”).

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that
involves the establishment of a separate entity
in which each venturer has an interest.
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B R AL
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4.

60

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d)

Joint venture (Cont’d)

Investment in a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is
initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the jointly controlled entity
in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the jointly controlled
entity’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment
and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a jointly controlled
entity’s post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the jointly controlled entity. If the jointly
controlled entity subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Joint venture (Cont’d)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a jointly
controlled entity that results in a loss of joint
control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that jointly controlled entity and (ii) the
Group’s share of the net assets of that jointly
controlled entity plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that jointly controlled entity and
any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between
the Group and its jointly controlled entities
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the jointly controlled entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of jointly controlled
entities have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

62

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
(e)
(iii)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences
are recognised in the exchange
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and
of borrowings are recognised in the
exchange reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in combined
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

64

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off
their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal useful lives and annual rates are
as follows:

Over the shorter of
unexpired term of
lease and estimated
useful lives, being no
more than 20 years
after the date of
completion

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture and office 10%-33%
equipment
Machinery and 10%-20%

equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-25%

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2012

B

4.

BT

(f)

“HE+-A=FTBIFE

EXRETHBER#E)

I3 - RS B sR M AR AR
ST ERRERBERSIRK

{872 808 B B0 > B4 AR
W ETEAARER R
BT EHEER AAZER
T HERAFRIALE
BEEREIABAE (R
BRERA) o FIEEMEBR
RERARHEEBBEER
HE

M- BERKRBIUER
& 0 R B DU SE E RS IRUR]
BREE LR PMEFTAE
RERAERE - TEAE
AEHRFRNT

HEY=
£

BRAREREE
R HMGE
EIRER: R
(LA 2 & 5
BEE
A=k
HETIEB
205

RERBRAZE 10%ZE33%
BiL]

HEERRE 10%220%
AE 20% ZE25%



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
The residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and machinery
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Computer software

Computer software are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 to 10 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(i)

)]

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the first-in, first-out basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(k)

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase
or sale of an investment is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the
case of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

()

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed
maturity that the Group has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the held-to-maturity
investments are impaired, and is
measured as the difference between
the investments’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. Impairment losses
are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss
when an increase in the investments’
recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject
to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the investments at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Investments other than held-to-maturity
investments are classified as either
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss or available-for-sale
financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
(k)
(i)
(iii)

Investments (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are either investments
classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition. These
investments are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivative financial assets not
classified as trade and other receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the investments are
disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
recognised in profit or loss. Interest
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss for equity investments classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are
not subsequently reversed through profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss for debt instruments
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently reversed and
recognised in profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

()

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for
impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the receivables’
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in profit or loss when
an increase in the receivables’ recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(n)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are
stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Cont’d)

4.
(Cont’d)
(n)
(iii)
(iv)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the
holder to convert the bonds into a
fixed number of equity instruments at
a fixed conversion price are regarded
as compound instruments consist of
a liability and an equity component. At
the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using
the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt and the fair
value of embedded option for the holder
to convert the bonds into equity of the
Company is estimated using valuation
technique.

The liability component is carried
as a liability at amortised cost using
the effective interest method until
extinguished on conversion or
redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds
based on their relative carrying amounts
at the date of issue. The portion relating
to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(o)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

0

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods

Revenues from the sales of
manufactured or trading goods are
recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and the title has
passed to the customers.

Card transaction levies represent service
fee charged by the Group to contracted
merchants at specific rates on the
monetary value of consumptions made
by cardholder settled using the stored
value cards in the merchants’ stores.
Card transaction levies are recognised
as these transactions occur.

Card handling and service charges
consist of monthly maintenance fees
on expiry unused balances, new card
handling charges, net of discount or
waivers, and other customer services
charges. The monthly maintenance
fees are recognised when the fees are
deducted from the unused balances at
each month end. The new card handling
charges are recognised when a card
buyer purchases a new card. Other
customer services are recognised when
the services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.
(Cont’d)
(o)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

(p)
(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Consultancy income is recognised
when the service is rendered and on the
basis of stage of completion of each
individual project, provided that the
costs involved can be measured reliably.
The stage of completion of a transaction
is established by reference to the
costs incurred to date as compared
to the estimated total costs under the
transaction.

Commission income is recognised when
the service is rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE
4, BREFTEHER@E)
(o) WHEER(E)
(iv) BABARREHRS

B+ 30 4R 35 & 18 1R B
T H R RERA
BR - MR R Z A
AREUEFE-RF
ZEREERTIS R
SHIEBELEZHAE
BZBR 5 2 TR
RS Z LEB M RE °

% A TR BB 5
FHERE o

R E WA LB F =
SRR AT o

(v)

(vi)

BEEF

BEZBE 2K

BEFEBERPRSE
BREIZHKRRE
BR - YCHEER
EREHELEERZ
RBFEHMERFR
K& 8RR E A
%%%Zﬁ%#&%

BEBRBRERRE
PRANRAS 16 T HERT o

(p)
()

TREEFXNEEERAR ¢ T —FFR 73



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic
salaries. The retirement benefit scheme
cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to
the funds.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
when and only when, the Group
demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-
settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value (excluding the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that
will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed
generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation
rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received. Government
grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(t)

76

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group, the operations and cash flows
of which can be clearly distinguished from
the rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. It
also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
in the consolidated income statement, which
comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised
on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(u)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other year and it
further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(u)

v)

Taxation (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is
related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the
Company.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2012

B

4.

BT —F+-_A=1t—HIFE
BERESTTHE@#)
() BHHIEE)

(v)

IEIER IR & E BRE BN & |
SHBEERARE  IRA
BRI REA E M ERBEF LA
%W@é%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

EERIBDREHNEER
BRNEEZRHBER 2B
R E - UREHBERE
CREMNER LB 2B R
RRE  EERIBRIBE P
R MR IR N H A
2HEWARERREETA
B BB ARRAIRI - 7
WERT » BERETSAEH
b = E WA PR R E T
AR o

EAERIBEER 8 BEN K
& LABNHA % TH & 2 B B A
HEBEEER  RRZEE
EHEEEREBERF B
HHEBEEW 2RISR -
BAREEEUFRESEHND
HBREER AERIEH -

BEAL
BE AL 5B B AR B B
ZBANERE -

(i) Z A TR
HEEHARE
;

(i) FATEEHARE
B i E K &
&5

iy BALTBLREER
RAEEZHQ
AZEEEEA

B o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(v) Related parties (Cont’d)

An entity is related to the Group
(reporting entity) if any of the following
conditions applies:

B)

(i)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(A).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Cont’d)
(B) (Cont’d)

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets and intangible assets except
goodwill, deferred tax assets, inventories and
receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(w)

(x)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior year. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

4.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of reporting period
or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when
material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, is discussed below.

@

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes impairment loss for bad
and doubtful debts based on assessments
of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories
Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated
net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge/write-back in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

B

5.

==y

“HE+-A=t+—HIFE

El]- DNEXIEREE )

EATRERRZEZRRAE)

©®)

©

TREEFXNEEERAT

REEREEWRR R 2 Aid
FE W R 2 T U B 14 4F 2 &7
it BESEEBL 2HE
FEERBEWRTE SR
RAREHRE ° fEHFHE
MEBEREGRANHE EEW
B - BIFERRR(E - R RIE
AR 7E Z M A I T R AR5t o fid
ERSRERAGFES
£ HEEZRETEREMG
STHBREBFE 2 BWIRM
F B ftb B WK BR T (B K% R Bk
FIx e

IR P AR

IR ERERERF SRR
Rt et f7 & ° & 5 FEE
H oo FHEBE S RS R E
Ffhst o i HR BB AR A
FRMETBAAE - BIAE
ERERTE LIS HRE
HHEFE 2 REERERE
Bz BmE -

— T FFR 83



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

5.

84

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont’d)

(@

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.
The Group currently has two cash-generating
units, namely general trading operations
and prepaid cards operations. The total
carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period was HK$940,671,000 (2011:
HK$1,092,372,000) and an impairment loss of
HK$160,499,000 (2011: Nil) was recognised
during the year. Details of the impairment loss
calculation are set out in note 24 to financial
statements.

Moreover, one of the key assumptions that
the management made when performing
impairment test of goodwill at end of reporting
period for prepaid card operations is that the
relevant future tax payable by the relevant
CGU under the Pilot Scheme would not be
more than what would have been paid under
the old business tax system.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont’d)

(e

Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related amortisation for the Groups
intangible assets. The useful live of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite, based on the expected usage and
technical obsolescence from the changes
in the market demands or services output
from the assets. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised over the expected
useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible assets may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for the intangible assets with a finite
useful life are reviewed by the management at
least at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

6.

86

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2011 and 2012, the Group
entities had no significant assets or liabilities
denominated in currency other than respective
functional currencies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’q)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables and
amount due from an associate included in the
statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in the event that counterparties fail to
perform their obligations at 31 December
2012 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of
those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The largest trade receivables
represent approximately 35% (2011: 21%) of
total trade receivables. In order to minimise
credit risk, the directors have delegated
senior management to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition,
the directors review the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt regularly to
ensure that adequate impairment losses
are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, the directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

B

6.

BT —F+_A=1+—HItFE

(b)

TREEFXNEEERAT

EEREE#)

EERR
BBERRRPZ2RERIRIT
meR - RUUIRTR B
AR U — R B 0 B RROR
ZHRHEE  EAKEMBE
ENREzZBESEERR -

RERBTEBZEERR
AR HEHFHEISER
BREEFRRBRAEZSRE
BEEFARIRT ©

WHFIR_T-—_F+=
A=t—-BHEERERA
ZHBEES-—RHEITH
&% ANEBEFHEHER &KX
FERBERES VRN
KAFIZSEEZREE -
AEBEZEFERBREIERE
HEWIR o & KEWERRK
R AR A35% (= F
——F 121%) - BEAEH
BEERR  EBEZEES
REEBANE  AEEERE
BE FEEMRAMESR
BRF e ltih  EFERERE
& 185 & 2 &5 2 7] W B 5K
H o AR A ARE 2 EE
BREBZBERRE ° Bt
FHMES  EBAARELEE
ZEEREE KIEREE -

— T FFR 87



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"BLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 6. HKEMREE®)

(c) Liquidity risk (c) HRBESEK

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor AEBCHRAEREZER
current and expected liquidity requirements to ERFERRBESER - #
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of REEERBRSHE - U
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the WERARRPRBESS
short and longer term. K e
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial rEECHBEERIEA
liabilities is as follows: DHWT

Less than Between

1year 2to5years
DPR—F WEERHF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——%+—-H
=+—H
Trade payables FEATBRFX 10,749 -
Accruals and other payables FRREARAMENTIE 81,187 -
Due to a director BT —BESIE 5,000 -
Convertible bonds ARRES - 120,000
At 31 December 2011 R-Z—F+=A
=+—H
Trade payables FE{FBRFX 18,146 -
Accruals and other payables JEIRE AR E b FRIE 116,216 -

88 China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2012
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BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’q)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk
arises from its bank deposits, fixed deposits
and bank borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interests at fixed rate and
variable rates varied with the then prevailing
market condition.

At 31 December 2012, if interest rates at that
date had been 100 basis points lower with all
other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
HK$1,076,000 lower (2011: HK$1,183,000
lower), arising mainly as a result of lower
interest income on bank deposits. If interest
rates had been 100 basis points higher, with
all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
HK$1,076,000 higher (2011: HK$1,183,000
higher), arising mainly as a result of higher
interest income on bank deposits.
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(d)

EEREE#)

=@ b
REEEH 27 =@ KB

HEGHER  EBERRE
T REERRERD
REBRTRED 2 EE 8%
RFBEEHE -

RZE2E——-F+=ZA=1+—
H & B 2 FZ=EK100
BEEZ  mAEEMEES
RETE  BFEHESRT
% ' F FE 28 £ 1,076,000
BT(ZE2E——F . @B
1,183,000/87t) - TEEH
RIBTHERZBER S WA
sk o e F RS H 1008 E
o MAEBEHMEHITR
BrE BFEHERT
% % F FE & 1€ Hn 1,076,000
BL(ZZ——F &
1,183,000/87t) » TEEH
Eéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬁ%%u,@u&)\ﬁﬁ

Categories of financial instruments at € R=-ZFE—-—Z-F+-A
31 December 2012 =t—HZzEmIAER
2012 2011
—B-=-F —ZE——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Financial assets: HBEE
Loans and receivables (including EBXNKEWRF(EEFERE
cash and cash equivalents) RBEEZSEY) 272,852 288,414
Financial liabilities: MEaE
Financial liabilities of fair value BRAFETFTABREZ
through profit or loss (Contingent Bt & & (A
consideration payable) KRE) - 472,848
Financial liabilities measured at REBERATTEZ
amortised cost BEasE 170,345 131,952
170,345 604,800
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(f)

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities as
reflected in the statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy
which has 3 levels:

Level 2:

Level 3:

31 December:

B

6.

=

B
(f)

“HE+-A=FTBIFE

HEkRE

HE)
AT

7N 5= B IR B B IR O 3R R R 2
BHREERMBEBRE
B EHZEZAHERS -

T XX BB LR PRI & ORET
ERVE  2H=EZRG

E:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active FAN . RNERBHEBER M
markets for identical assets or EESEEZHRE
liabilities. B CREFE) -
inputs other than quoted prices MAl2: BRABRTEBEER
included within Level 1 that are BI1FMNEETR
observable for the asset or liability, EESEBZEE
either directly (i.e. as prices) or (BB ) =k (AP
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). BRITE)REE

1% o
inputs for the asset or liability that are BWAIB 1 WARBERBEE
not based on observable market data ARMSHIEES
(unobservable inputs). ZEESEE -
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at RTZA=+—BEENR
FEERHBIE
Fair value measurement using: Total
FERAAFEUNEE At
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2012
& 51 & Bl2 &/ABIZ —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FAET

Contingent

ENANRE

consideration
payable
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 6. HEEKREEm®E)

(f)

Fair values (Cont’d)

(H 2FEGE)

Fair value measurement using: Total
FERAAFEANEE aF

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2011

Al F B2 FRIB —F——%F

HK$000 HK$000  HK$’000 _H7K$’000

TET

TET TER TER

Contingent RS SHARE
consideration
payable -

- 472,848 472,848

Reconciliation of contingent consideration
payable measured at fair value based on level
3:

RARBIBLA A FEFE 2 MY
FARREZHK

2012 2011
=F-=F —Z——F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET
At begining of year REA 472,848 -
Issues BT - 850,588
Settlements B (220,208) (146,754)
Total gains recognised in RIBRTER 2 U &=

profit or loss

At end of year REXR

The total gains recognised in profit or loss
including those liabilities held at the end
of reporting period are presented in the
consolidated income statement.

(252,640)  (230,986)

- 472,848

RESBER 2RABREBER
BEREESERFE2ZSF
8E  HRGEERAKRES -
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B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"BLFE
7. TURNOVER 7. EER
2012 2011
—g-=F ~F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Continuing operations RHEREETR
— Card transaction levies, handling - kRGBE - FEER
and service charges RIS E 9,766 9,230
- Prepaid cards consultancy income —JFa{JREHBAR RS
and system development FREEUTA
income 1,277 8,646
— Commission income from -SRI
distribution of prepaid phone HeWA
cards 13,236 5,648
— Sales of mobile phones, computer, —$5&F# - S -
communication equipments, Wk VAR
liquor and currency sorter B DM 163,165 205,900
— Sales of consumer goods via gift — BBy LT
card marketing EHEER 21,331 33,671
- Others —Hfth 4,030 -
212,805 263,095
Discontinued operation (note 16) 2RISR (MisE16)
- Sales of optical image capturing —HENX B GIEEEN
devices and related barcode K EEA RIS R ER
reader equipments B - 80,671
212,805 343,766
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BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hftlg A

2012 2011
—B—=-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
Derecognition of financial liabilities & I-FEREERE - 38
Interest income FEWA 3,889 1,695
Compensation receivable W EE 3,000 -
Government grant B AL - 304

System development and R REAWA
consultancy income 81 4,150
Others Hith 61 385
7,031 6,572

Representing: e

Continuing operations FEREETR 7,031 3,136
Discontinued operation (note 16) BRI RE T (MiEE16) - 3,436
7,031 6,572
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B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

9.

94

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group has three reportable segments as
follows:

Discontinued operation

SYSCAN - manufacture and sale of optical
image capturing devices, chips and
other optoelectronic products in the

PRC

Continuing operations

Prepaid — provision of prepaid card payment
cards services and related customer
services and consultancy services;
and marketing and sale of consumer
goods in form of prepaid gift cards

in the PRC
General — trading of mobile phones, computer,
trading communication equipments, liquor

and currency sorter

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and
marketing strategies.

The Group’s other operating segments include
inactive operations and software development
business. None of these segments meets any of the
quantitative thresholds for determining reportable
segments. The information of these other operating
segments is included in the ‘others’ column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in note 4 to the
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do
not include equity-settled share-based payment,
dividend income, goodwill impairment, imputed
interest on convertible bonds, gains or losses from
investments and changes in fair value of contingent
consideration payable. Segment assets do not
include deferred tax assets, goodwill, amounts due
from related parties, investments and derivative
instruments. Segment non-current assets do not
include financial instruments, deferred tax assets
and goodwill.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and
transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third-
parties, i.e. at current market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

9. RERM@E

FRATERsBarNBEREE

and assets: ZERWMT :
Discontinued
operation Continuing operations
BRILEEEYR FECSEER
Prepaid
card General
business trading Others Total
SYSCAN  BH+%% -RES Hit CH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TER TEL FEx FEx
Year ended BE_E-—F
31 December 2012 +=ZA=1+-H
LLFE
Revenue from external ~ REMBRE I
customers - 44,449 168,118 238 212,805
Intersegment revenue S EERKE - 1,826 - - 1,826
Segment profit PEER - 9,112 37,833 20 46,965
Interest revenue FIE Wz - 3,163 707 19 3,889
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation - (774) (1,930) (427) (3,131)
Other material non-cash HthEAFERE
items: &R :
Impairment of an —EBEARRE
associate - (822) - - (822)
Additions to segment  FBHE
non-current assets EREEE - 4,131 148 2,701 6,980
As at 31 December R-E-—F
2012 +=ZA=1+-H
Segment assets NEERE - 194,659 90,249 15,633 300,541
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss
and assets: (Cont’d)

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

9. 2WER@E

FRAZ2BR2EalsBEREE
ZERWOT : (&)

Discontinued
operation Continuing operations
BREREEK BEREEK
Prepaid
card General
business trading Others Total
SYSCAN  FAfF%K -RES 2t /it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FExT TET TER TEL
Year ended Hz-Z2—-F
31 December 2011 +=-RA=+-H
LLFE
Revenue from external  RBE/MBE F iz
customers 80,671 49,899 205,900 7,296 343,766
Intersegment revenue  HERKE - 6,616 - - 6,616
Segment profit/loss) &R,/ (EE) 14,926 14,521 43,075 (149) 72,373
Interest revenue FEUH 198 1,402 36 59 1,695
Interest expense FIERX (2,578) (210) (774) (12) (3,574)
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation (5,611) (403) (938) (516) (7,468)
Other material items of H#EAWAREX
income and expense: &R :
Share of losses of PMEBE N AERE
associates (438) - - - (438)
Gain on disposal of HEMB D AW
subsidiaries 42,092 - - - 42,092
Additions to segment  FBHE
non-current assets EREERE 60,598 915 6,131 453 68,097
As at 31 December RZE——%&
2011 +=A=1+-8
Segment assets NEEE - 172,714 99,727 29,808 302,249
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 9.
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,

BE—_T—

D REF (&)
2R MW BENRBBUR

“HE+-A=t+—HIFE

profit or loss and assets: EEHEE
2012 2011
—EB-—F —_F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Revenue Wz
Total revenue of reportable segments ] 2§ %8 > W5 4 58 214,631 350,382
Elimination of intersegment revenue 4 %8R 5 ¥ 4 (1,826) (6,616)
Elimination of discontinued operation T & IF 484 238 ¥4 - (80,671)
Consolidated revenue from FEREERZE NS
continuing operations 212,805 263,095
Profit or loss A EE
Total profit or loss of reportable A2} B 2R FIH
segments bk 46,965 72,373
Unallocated corporate income and Ko FAEWARBEX
expense, net FEE (16,447) (21,684)
Share of losses of jointly controlled  o{f—RBHEEHIEELN
entities wia - (1,117)
Share of losses of associates DB A BIEE - (100)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— BB A R WS - 2,727
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—-REHBATERER - (319)
Gain on revaluation of previous held &1 5t i jA + [F 5 4
interest in jointly controlled entities BT ARG - 8,451
Impairment of goodwill EIER A (160,499) -
Gain on fair value change of BASARAREAFE
contingent consideration payable SEN S 252,640 230,986
Gain on bargain purchase on business 234 & B W B I
combination - 3,423
Equity-settled share-based payment pgfEst R0 5 2018 (6,022) -
Imputed interest on convertible bonds i g &4 EF B (12,283) (134)
Elimination of discontinued operation B 1F &% %38 ¥4y - (14,926)
Profit before income tax BRI A=A 104,354 279,684
Income tax expense 8RB (12,757) (15,760)
Consolidated profit for the year from FEKEEEBKFE
continuing operations ARl 91,597 263,924
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments T E2H{KpE o BEEHEE 300,541 302,249
Deferred tax asset EERIBEEE 1,866 1,851
Investments in associates REEE RN R 2 BE - 822
Due from an associate FEU — RE B N B3N8 4,106 2,914
Goodwill GRS 940,671 1,092,372
Other corporate assets Hihb¥EEE 4,666 7,800
Consolidated total assets raEEAEE 1,251,850 1,408,008
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EypyE E R
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"BLFE
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 9. 2EERE)
Geographical information: EER
2012 2011
—t - —E——F
Discontinued  Continuing Discontinued Continuing
operation operations operation operations
BRIEREER HEQEER CRUKEXK FELEER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT FBT FET
Revenue Wz
The PRC HE - 212,805 28,256 263,095
USA ESE| - - 31,796 -
Others Hit - - 20,619 -
Consolidated total ZalaE
revenue pak) - 212,805 80,671 263,095
In presenting the geographical information, revenue REJHEERE  WEDERE
is based on the locations of the customers. FRIEE o
The Group’s non-current assets are all located in AREBZIRBEEZIMUAPE o
the PRC.
Revenue from major customers: REFEREFZE :
2012 2011

—F-——-F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

SYSCAN (discontinued operation) SYSCAN(E & L& %)

Customer a =Fa - 31,796
General trading —REZ

(continuing operations) (FEKEERK)

Customer b =FDb - 65,507

Customer c =Fc 55,915 35,880

Customer d =FEd 42,561 -
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BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BERKA
2012 2011
R kD
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Interest on bank loans RITERRE 88 1,803
Interest on other loan HERKFE
- wholly repayable within five years —RAFRBEHEIZ - 1,827
Imputed interest on convertible bonds TR (& %5 H & F & 12,283 134
12,371 3,764
Representing: VE
Continuing operations FECEEK 12,371 1,186
Discontinued operation (note 16) BRI RS T (MiEE16) - 2,578
12,371 3,764
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FigBifx
2012 2011
—B-=—F E—-—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Current tax — Overseas BERRLIE — g oh
Provision for the year FERERE 13,907 12,462
Under-provision in prior years BEFERBRE 99 -
14,006 12,462
Deferred tax (note 37) IEFERIE (MiEE37) (1,249) 3,298
12,757 15,760
Representing: AV
Continuing operations FIEREET 12,757 15,760

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required
since the Group has no assessable profit for the

year.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates, based on

existing legislation, interpretation and practices in HE o

respect thereof.

R AN SR [ 5 (0 IF 4B 2 A FERR BLIR
A RIAFEEREBRSHEE -

H o 3th B FERBLUE R 2 B IA X H %
AEBEBRERAR2BTHE
WRBEBARBEE RERIES
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B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)
The new PRC enterprise income tax law passed by
the Tenth National People’s Congress on 16 March
2007 introduces various changes which include
the unification of the enterprise income tax rate for
domestic and foreign enterprises at 25%. The new
tax law becomes effective from 1 January 2008.

100

BE_T——F+_A=1HLFE

11.

E+EXEARAEAGR -2
LE=A+ABBBsHRETE
FiER R ASEET BN
BRSE R LR
—R05%  ZHBABE=BEN

F-A—BEEH-

The reconciliation between the income tax expense Fﬁ’%%ﬂﬁﬁi‘iéﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ v Al 3 LA R
and the product of profit before tax multiplied by CEMESHBERSER 2HRW
the PRC enterprise income tax rate is as follows: T
() Continuing operations () FELEEK
2012 2011
e —=——fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHBT
Profit before tax BRELAER 104,354 279,684
Tax at PRC enterprise income tax &R MEAEHEI=R
rate of 25% (2011: 25%) 25% =t H 2Bl
: 25%) 26,089 69,921
Tax effect of income that is not uﬁﬁuﬁz}\ zmﬁ%
taxable (63,163) (61,720)
Tax effect of expenses that are not 1= _H[I%RF';EJ X2 B
deductible 47,777 5,578
Tax effect of unused tax losses not 5EEJJ ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ 2518
recognised )’Eﬂg zmr’}%iﬁi 3,580 759
PRC dividend withholding tax SFEHIFL - 1,222
Reversal of provision of PRC EJZ ﬁ%‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁé{%ﬁé@
dividend withholding tax (1,249) -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax B AL ARERRIE
losses not previously recognised 518 2&5‘%3@—— (376) -
Under-provision in prior years BEIFERETR 99 -
Income tax expense FriEfiR X 12,757 15,760
(i) Discontinued operation (i) ERILEERHE
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——5F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FHET
Profit before tax FREL A=A - 14,926
Tax at PRC enterprise income tax iz B EFERHER
rate of 25% (2011: 25%) 25%.:1"§Z$RIE
(= 1 25%) - 3,732
Tax effect of income that is not ﬁ’ﬁnﬁﬂuﬂlkziﬂﬂ%
taxable - (10,523)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not 5E§JJ ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ D2 HiE
recognised BB BB - 6,791

Income tax expense
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after

BT —F+_A=1+—HItFE

12. REE&H

REBAREE ZEF MR, (G

charging/(crediting) the following: AN UTEERIE :
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
FELERR EALEEXH =
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF E-—-E& —E-CE E--F —E-CE _E-E&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT Thn Tén Tén TR TR
Amortisation B 569 - - 1,570 569 1,570
Depreciation i 2,562 1,903 - 4,041 2,562 5,944
Directors’ emoluments A
- As directors -fEREZ 498 482 - - 498 482
- For management -{FAEEE 4,214 3172 - 162 4,214 3,334
4,12 3,654 - 162 4,12 3,816
Loss on disposals of property,  HEYE BER
plant and equipment HEEE 198 40 - 2,588 198 2,628
Operating leases charges TeRETd 6,010 4915 - 2,483 6,010 7,398
Auditor's remuneration hEmme 950 950 - - 950 950
Cost of inventories sold BERERK 131,374 177,992 - 74,616 131,374 252,608
Exchange loss E XA 115 1,654 - - 115 1,654
(ain on disposals of subsidiaries HHENBAFE - 2,727) - (42,09) - (44,819)
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries HEHEATER - 315 - - - 315
Impairment loss ontrade and ~~ FEUERS R el
other receivables HERERE 74 - - 679 174 679
Impairment of goodwill BERE 160,499 - - - 160,499 -
Impairment of an associate —-HBENTRE 822 - - - 822 -
Staff costs including directors’  ETFi&
remuneration (BEESEH)
Salaries, bonus and allowances T% - 741 28k 20,804 19,195 - 18,562 20,804 37,757
Equity-settled share-based ~ RBEERHTH
payments HE 6,022 - - - 6,022 -
Contribution to retirement BERITEMRE
benefit schemes 4,669 3,237 - 1,723 4,669 4,960

31,49 22,432

- 20,285 31,49 Q1

In 2011, cost of inventories sold of discontinued
operation includes staff costs, depreciation
and operating lease charges of approximately
HK$10,830,000 which are included in the amounts
disclosed separately above.

RZZB——F CRIEEEEK 2
HEGERABEEINAX - ITE
N & & HE & H 410,830,000 %
TT BEP AL LB IE 2R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’

HE-T——

FH-A=1t—RHIFE

13. EEREEME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=#M<
The emoluments of each of the directors were ZREEMEWT :
as follows:
Retirement
Equity-settled henefit
Salariesand  share-based scheme Total
Name of director Fees  allowances payments  contributions  remuneration
‘ RELE EiEA
B3 g IER2E  RAZATE E hEm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn T T T
Year ended 31 December 2012 Bz-E--F
tZR=t-ALEE
Executive directors #ngs
Guan Guisen (i BER - 1,800 - 15 1815
Lei Chunxiong () B - 1,200 - 15 1215
Cao Chunmeng (vi EEH) - 594 583 8 1,185
- 3504 583 38 4215
Non-executive director FunEs
Li Yuezhong (v) ZRA() 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive directors — BusiHTES
Wang Zhongmin (i) LR 120 - 2 - 149
Gu Jiawang (ii) ARH(i) 120 - 2 - 149
Fong Chi Wah FEE 120 - 29 - 149
40 3594 670 3 4712
Year ended 31 December 2011 HEZ-E2--F
TZR=T-ALEE
Executive directors #gs
Guan Guisen () BER - 1518 - 2 1520
Lei Chunxiong ) ] - 1016 - 2 1018
Cheung Wai (i) M) - 571 - 4 575
Cheung Frank (i) Cheung Frank (i) - 219 - 2 21
- 3324 - 10 3334
Non-executive director FuiEs
Li Yuezhong (i) % Bi 81 - - - 81
Independent non-executive directors  Bu3iTES
Wang Zhongmin (i) TR 81 - - - 81
Gu Jiawang (i) AR i) 81 - - - 81
Fong Chi Wah FEE 120 - - - 120
Wang Ruiping (iv) ¥ () 80 - - - 80
He Zhiyi () 5w 39 - - - 39
482 3,324 - 10 33816

102

China Innovationpay Group Limited e Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d) (a)
(i) Appointed on 28 February 2011

(i) Resigned on 28 February 2011
(iii) Appointed on 28 April 2011
(iv) Retired on 28 April 2011

(v) Resigned on 31 May 2012

(vi) Appointed on 11 July 2012

Five highest paid individuals’ (b)
emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group

during the year included 3 (2011: 2) directors

whose emoluments are reflected in the

analysis presented above. The emoluments

of the remaining 2 (2011: 3) individuals are set

out below:

13. EENEEME (&E)

EEM=(E)
() E=B-——F=A=t+NH
BE(

(ii) E-Z——%-A=+NH
BHE

(iii) E-E——FMA=+N\H
EBEE

vy #HEZET——FMA=+N\H
B

v) HE-E-—-—FHA=+-8

BHE
(vi) E-ZT——_FtA+—AE
Z=1E
hEESFMAL

FRAREE 2 EHSH M
ATBRE=F(ZF——%F .
MB)ES > HEHRN EX
FRIIZ A » BR T A (=
E——F ZR)ATZBE
;T

2012 2011
=2-=F —Z——F
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Basic salaries and allowances HARTERERL 1,394 2,305
Retirement benefit scheme BIRERETEMRFR

contributions 37 11
Equity-settled share-based IRAEEE RN S

payments A 235 -

1,666 2,316
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B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

13.

14.

104

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’

emoluments (Cont’d)

HE—

13.

T——F+_A=1+—HItFE

EShESME @)

(b) EEZREFMALGE

The remuneration fell within the following NFTHIEE < HH
band:
Number of individuals
AE
2012 2011
—EB——F —E2——F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £2%1,000,000/8 7T 2 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any of the directors or the
highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme were held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
were each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rate specified in the rules. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated
at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of contribution in
January—-May 2012 of HK$1,000 per employee and
June-December 2012 HK$1,250 per employee
(2011: HK$1,000 per employee) and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

14.

15.

16.

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Cont’d) 14, EBARERFE#)
Eligible employees of the Group’s subsidiaries EHERIZ2AEERNBAREE
established in the PRC are members of a central KBEESHEE M HBFRLE 2R
pension scheme operated by the local municipal RAGHE - ZEWB AR ERERE
government. These subsidiaries are required to EERTERFEZ2E@BAL -
contribute certain percentage of the employees’ @ AR SR RGBSR - SRR K
basic salaries and wages to the central pension BAl o B BT &R » SFRIEZ
scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local MEBARMEBRERANGRKZE
municipal government undertakes to assume the EZRAKRBHERE - ZZEME AT
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and BEZPREARFTE 2E—FER
future retired employees of this subsidiary. The only RIBSTEWEL TR MR o
obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the
central pension scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the scheme.
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 15. ZAAT#EB AEBEFRER
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The profit for the year attributable to owners of RARBEEARGFRGENEIED
the Company included a profit of approximately RAQRHMBRKREE Z @A L
HK$199,978,000 (2011: HK$227,822,000) which 199,978,000 B T (=& — — F :
has been dealt with in the financial statements of 227,822,000/&7T) °
the Company.
DISCONTINUED OPERATION 16. BRIEKEETRK
Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement RIEAR A FENew Smart Version
dated 21 October 2011 (as supplemented by a Limitedffs] L AEiA - ——F+
supplemental agreement dated 23 November 2011) B-t+—BzEEHmR(KARA—
entered into between the Company and New Smart E-——F+—-—AZ+=HAZ®@RxH
Version Limited, the Group disposed 100% equity BER)  AEBHER—EWE
interest in a subsidiary, SYSCAN Holdings Limited ‘ABISYSCAN Holdings Limited &%
and all its subsidiaries and associates (note 41(d)(ii)). H2HMB AR RBE AR 225
The disposal was completed on 28 December 2011, PRAEERS (MF5E41(d)(ii) ° HESE
and the Group has discontinued its manufacture ER=E——F+ZA=+/N\HE
and sale of optical image capturing devices, chips K AEBERFRZLLEERPE
and other optoelectronic products in the PRC. SUERHEXZBEGBEEM - T
FREMAEERER -
The profit from the discontinued operation is FRORILEEEBR 2 BN D
analysed as follows: T
2011
=F-—F
HK$’000
FHET
Loss of discontinued operation ERIEEKEER (26,394)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation HED KR IEEK NG
(note 41(d)(ii) (FMFEE41(d)(i)) 41,320
14,926

TREAF S NEEAR AT ¢ —T——FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Cont’d) 16. R ILKEERK (7)
The results of the discontinued operation which has BE-_ZE——F+t-HA=t+—HL
been included in the consolidated profit or loss for FEERLEEEXRBZ2EECTA
the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows: FEBRRNT
2011
— A
HK$’000
FHET
Turnover B 80,671
Cost of sales SHERA (74,616)
Gross profit ER 6,055
Other income Hibug A 3,436
Selling expenses HERMX (7,248)
Administrative expenses THEX (15,805)
Research and development expenses WrgE R BB AR AN (9,732)
Other operating expenses HihEepx (856)
Loss from operations ¥%EE (24,150)
Finance costs BE A (2,578)
Share of losses of associates PMEEE D TEE (438)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARG 772
Loss before tax BRBiAI A (26,394)
Income tax expense Frigfip -
Loss for the year REEEFIE (26,394)
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No tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of

the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ST
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE
16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Cont’d) 16. ORILKEERK (#)
The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued ERILEBERERESREFHENT ¢
operation are as follows:
2011
—E——F
HK$’000
FET
Net cash generated from operating activities && ZB TSRS T 65,377
Net cash used in investing activities BRETHFTARESTE (45,639
Net cash used in financing activities METETARSFEE (51,239)
(31,501)
17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings BREAREERFDBRBUTH
per share is based on the following: BEtE
Continuing and Continuing Discontinued
discontinued operations operations operation
BERCRLREER BELERH BALEEEE
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

“8-=§ % -%-2§ “$——§ -8-2§ 3¢
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
i . . .

Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of At RERER

calculating basic eamings BRI A

per share 91,362 283,071 91,362 264,586 - 18,485
Finance costs saving on conversion 3217 2 [& R 317

of contingently issuable AR ES F LA

convertible bonds outstanding  EiE ZBERA - 134 - 134 - -

Earnings for the purpose of R ERREE
calculating diluted earnings BRI EA
per share 91,362 283,205 91,362 264,720 - 18,485
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B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’d)

B

BT —F+_A=1—HItFE

17. BREN#E)

Continuing and Continuing Discontinued
discontinued operations operations operation
BERCALEEEE BECEER BRIEREEK
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“g--f -5 -B--f “E--f C—B--F —E--%
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Number of shares RH&E
Issued ordinary shares R-B-HE®TZ
at 1 January LiER 3,964,639 2,640,889 3,964,639 2,640,889 - 2,640,889
Effect of placement of shares RERBEE - 508,562 - 508,562 - 508,562
Effect of exercise of share options  {TFEREZ & 16,926 - 16,926 - - -
Effect of consideration shares ~ ER{TRERAZ
issued g - 183,390 - 183,390 - 183,390
Effect of conversion of convertible Fi2 AR ES 2
bonds ¥ 424,905 148,603 424,905 148,603 - 148,603
Weighted average number of P EERER
ordinary shares for the purpose BRI 112
of calculating basic earnings 9%
per share 4,406,470 3,481,444 4,406,470 3,481,444 - 3,481,444
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary Z4 B8 &{TfE
shares arising from share options B2 &
outstanding LEREE 8,568 28,265 8,568 28,265 - 28,265
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary E4EB#F#T2
shares arising from contingently — ERE{TTRRES
issuable convertible bonds LEEHELER,
outstanding e - 1,165,610 - 1,165,610 - 1,165,610
Weighted average number of At EakEE
ordinary shares for the purpose ~ BF2 LM infE
of calculating diluted eamings ~ F3E
per share 4415038 4675319 4,415,038 4,675,319 - 4675319

In 2011, basic earnings per share from the
discontinued operation is HK0.53 cent per
share and diluted earnings per share from the
discontinued operation is HK0.40 cent per share,
based on the profit for the year from discontinued
operation attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$18,485,000 and the
denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings per

share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE
18. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 18. Hftn&=mxz
2012 2011

—g--F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET
Payment for settlement of a dispute 7 4 —IEF & 25 (M)
(note) 6,000 -
Others Hith - 43
6,000 43
Representing: &k :
Continuing operations FEgEER 6,000 43
Note: BiEE
As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 4 July BAANRABRA-ZT——FtBEMAZAE
2012, the Company agreed to pay HK$6 million for final and FEl - AND EIRE % 146,000,000 ST E B A
conclusive settlement of the dispute between the Company ARRGEERREREGRATMD 2 &
and Luck Fame International Investment Holdings Limited. R AR 2 AR o
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

110

HE_T—

ZF+ZA=T—HIFE

19. % BEERE

Group
A5E
Furniture Machinery
Leasehold and office and Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
BAR
BENEEE WAZRME HBRRE g At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThT TET TR TEn
Cost A&
At 1 January 2011 R-2--£-5-H - 5,700 21,956 5,087 32,743
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEENBL A 1,767 3,356 - 483 5,606
Transferred from construction ~ EREREIR
in progress - - 6,613 - 6,613
Additions e 666 3,837 19,380 441 24,324
Disposals/written off HE /g - (228) (4,729 (2,880) (7,837)
Disposal of subsidliaries HENBAT (739) (7,384) (44,398 (2.804) (55,325)
Exchange differences ERES 75 420 1,178 175 1,848
At 31 December 2011 and "——¢+ A=1-BR
1 January 2012 “%--%-5-A 1,769 5,701 - 502 7972
Additions e 148 2,093 - - 2,241
Disposals/written off HE /M (416) (178) - - (594)
Exchange differences ERZH 6 57 - 3 66
At 31 December 2012 W-2--#+-B=1-H 1,507 7673 - 505 9,685
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZitHTEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2011 R=Z2--%-A-H - 2,315 18,344 1,700 22,359
Charge for the year REERY 21 3,198 1,420 599 5,944
Disposals/written off e /M - (148) (3,148) (105) (3,401)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAE (129) (4,470) (17,351) (2,128) (24,078)
Exchange differences ERER 24 169 735 83 1,01
At 31 December 2011 and RZE--E+ZA=1-ARK
1 January 2012 “%-"%-5-A 622 1,064 - 149 1,835
Charge for the year REERT RV 1,606 - 164 2,562
Disposals/written off HE /s (337) (59) - - (396)
Exchange differences EXEE 5 17 - 2 2
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—E+-A=1-R 1,082 2,628 - 315 4,025
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—£+-A=1-A 425 5,045 - 190 5,660
At 31 December 2011 R-B-—-E+-A=1-A 1,147 4,637 - 353 6,137
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

20. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

21.

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

20. FE{ttiFAEFHE

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—¥——F —B——F
HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FHET
At 1 January H—ABA—H - 45,631
Additions B - -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  #$4Fa{t L1 FEE
payments B - (1,570)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT - (45,483)
Exchange difference 5 ZE2E - 1,422
At 31 December W+=B=+—8” - -

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent
payments for land use rights outside Hong Kong
under medium term leases.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

AEBZBEM T EEREERS
BN AR T + i fE A2
R

21. EEIRE

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E-CfF —E2——fF
HK$’000 HK$°000

FExT FET
At 1 January H—B—H - 57,160
Additions wE - 39,750
Transfer to property, EHREYE
plant and equipment e - (6,613)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE D =] - (92,119)
Exchange difference ERELE - 1,822
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H - -

The Group’s construction in progress comprises
costs incurred on machinery and equipment.

REBZERTRRERERRBE
2R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"BLHFE
22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RMIBRARIZIRE
Company

AAHE
2012 2011
—E—-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FLEHRE  BHRAE 1,018,088 1,018,088
Less: Impairment losses " OREEE (18,000) -
1,000,088 1,018,088
Due from subsidiaries FEURE B A BIFIE 135,305 140,305
Less: Impairment losses L ORERE R - -
135,305 140,305
Due to subsidiaries FEHE A TIE 795 795
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are FEUR P& A B B 2 B 7R I8 T R 3K 3

unsecured and interest-free.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December
2012 are as follows:

R&BE o

MEBAER-_ZFE—Z-F+=A
=+t—HZHBWOT :

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and paid up
registration and  capital/ registered
operation capital Percentage of
Name BRMEY/HER  ERTRESRK ownership interest Principal activities
£ SEES afEE BEREIL FEEER
Direct Indirect
B B
Country Praise Enterprises Limited BVI 769,231 ordinary 100% - Investment holding
(‘Country Praise”) RERLHE shares of no par BERR
value
769,231 R EEEZ
EER
Splendid Win Enterprise Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
BB 10,000/ 1T REER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 22. MMBARZIRE (#)

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and paid up
registration and  capital/ registered

operation capital Percentage of
Name SMEL Sl ERTRESRAE ownershipinterest Principal activities
28 SEES afEE BEREIL  FEEER
Direct Indirect
B# R
Bright Voyage Limited BVI US$50,000 - 100% Investment holding
RERZEHS 50,000% T REER
Bright Voyage Global Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Inactive
&R 10,000 7T TEEX
BRAE (LR REZABRAT  The PRC RMB123,330,000 - 100% Trading of mobile
(Beijing Shangyin Investment e AR#123,330,0007 phones and
Consultancy Co. Ltd.) computer
equipments
BEEBHEER
s
TRABEREENEERAA  ThePRC RMB101,000,000 - 100% Information system
([HtRXEER]) e AE#101,000,0007T maintenance and
(Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information development
Technology Co. Ltd.) services
(“Beijing Tiantongsaibo”) EEAGEER
B 3 AR
I ERNLEEARAR The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Provision of prepaid
(Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial ~ AE%#100,000,0007 card and related
Management Co. Ltd.) customer services
AN RAAE
B PR
BREREBBXBRBERLT  ThePRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Provision of prepaid
(MER R ) P AR 5,000,000 card and related
(Shenyang Shanglian Huitong customer services
Commercial Services Co. Ltd.) REFEMFRIEHE
(“Shenyang Shanglian”) EFR#%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"BLFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 22. MMBARZIRE (#)

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and paid up
registration and  capital/ registered

operation capital Percentage of
Name SMEL EM  ERTRESRAE ownershipinterest Principal activities
£ SEES afEE BEREIL  FEEER
Direct Indirect
B# R
MNERSEREERAR The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 80% Provision of prepaid
(T g2k 1) H AR#4,000,0007T card and related
(Hangzhou Qianbao Gaohui customer services
Technology Co. Ltd.) REFERFRIAE
(“Hangzhou Qianbao”) EERE
B EERRARLT The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Inactive
(Shenyang Tonghui Technology H AE¥5,000,0007T TmE
Development Co. Ltd.)
FREARABERR AT The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Prepaid gift card
(ABtEEEBRERRAR) #HHE AR#10,000,0007T marketing and sales
(Beijing Zhixiang Chuangfu EAEYEHER
Commercial Co. Ltd.) HE
(Formerly known as
TREERHERRAA)
FEREBEERAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Prepaid gift card
(Shanghai Jinghui Commercial HE AE#1,000,0007 marketing and sales
Co. Ltd.) AARNFEER
HE
EEsERRERRAT The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Prepaid gift card
(Jinan Gaohuitong Commercial ~ H ARE#1,000,0007 marketing and sales
Co. Ltd.) AARNFEER
HE
NS EBEERAR The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Trading of liquor
(FAIRHNSERRBRAR)  ©E AE#2,000,0007C BEIES

(Hangzhou Gaohuitong
Commercial Co. Ltd.)
(Formerly known as

NNSENRRRAE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-_A=1+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 22. MMBRARZIRE (#)

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and paid up
registration and  capital/ registered

operation capital Percentage of

Name SMEL EM  ERTRESRAE ownershipinterest Principal activities
£ RExnE Tt Ex BEEEA FEEK

Direct Indirect

B EIE
FITEBREREEEEERARA  ThePRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Prepaid phone card
(MR D) e AEK#2,000,0007T distribution

(Shenzhen Shanglian Huitong S e RN

Commercial Management Co.
Ltd.) (“Shenzhen Shanglian”)

LS ERSERAR The PRC RMB1,010,000 - 100% Inactive
(Shanxi Gaohui Commercial e AK#1,010,0007T TEEH
Co. Ltd.)
SmER (tx) BEBRAT  ThePRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
(Kopu (Beijing) Technology e AR#10,000,0007 REER
Co., Ltd.)
SHERERAR(ER)BRAT  ThePRC RMB1,500,000 - 100% Internet based travel
(Kopu Ticket Agency Service F AR#1,500,0007 service that offers
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.) air tickets, hotels
and restaurants
REAEBETRE -
BERREREZ
%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R T
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"BLFE
23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23. BIL&EE
Group
rEH
Computer
software
B Erdes
HK$’000
FHT
Cost RS
At 1 January 2011 R=—ZE——F—HF—H -
Additions B 4,386
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 HNR-E——F+=-A=+—HEF
—E-—F—A—H 4,386
Additions =1 4,739
Exchange difference [EHZER 89
At 31 December 2012 N-E——F+=-H=+—H 9,214
Accumulated amortisation HetEH
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and H—E———A—8-
1 January 2012 —E-—H+ZA=+—-HK
—E-—F—A—H -
Charge for the year REERX 569
Exchange difference B 5 =458 6
At 31 December 2012 R-ZBE——F+_A=+—H 575
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——-F+-A=+—H 8,639
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——F%+=ZA=+—H 4,386
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

BE-_T——F+-A=1+—HIFE

24. GOODWILL 24. BHE
Group
pN-1L ]
Country Hangzhou
Praise Group Qianbao Kanghui
(Note 41(a)) (Note 41(b)) (Note 41(b)) Total
Country
Praise Group nMER BE
(HzF41(a) (HizF41(0) (Ft=E41(b)) a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn AR Fhn TERL
Cost o
At1 January 2011 W-B--£-F-H - - - -
Arising on acquisition of RUEHBARMES
subsidiaries (RizF41 @R (b))
(notes 41(a) and (b)) 1,043,256 8,719 5,752 1,057,727
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBLT
(note 41(d)(i) (KisE41(d)) (989) - (5,752) (6,741)
Exchange differences EREH 41,386 - - 41,386
At 31 December2011and  RZE-—-F+ZA=+-HE
1 January 2012 —E--#-f-H 1,083,653 8,719 - 1,092,372
Exchange differences ERES 10,555 70 - 10,625
At 31 December 2012 WZE-—E+zZB=1-H 1,094,208 8,789 - 1,102,997
Accumulated impairment  EitEiEEE
losses
At 1 January 2011, R-B--%-f-8>
31 December 2011 and “E—-FE+-B=+-HK
1 January 2012 —E-“E-f-f - - - -
Impairment loss recognised ~ WAEERED
in the current year HEEE 151,808 8,691 - 160,499
Exchange differences ERZE 1,729 98 - 1,827
At 31 December 2012 R-E--#+-B=+-H 153,537 8,789 - 162,326
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—E+-A=+1-H 940,671 - - 940,671
At 31 December 2011 WZB--E+ZB=1-H 1,083,653 8,719 - 1,092,372

TREEFXNEEERAR ¢ T —FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"BLFE
24. GOODWILL (cont’d) 24. P2 (#E)
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is REBESHFES ZBEDRNKE
allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating ROMEFEHBRZERSHTZ
units (“CGUs”) that are expected to benefit from BreHeELEBEN(REELE
that business combination. fiz]) e
General Prepaid
trading cards
operations operations
(“CGU1”) (“CGU2”) Total
—REZEHE FEALFER
(BeEE (HEeELE
B{u1]) By2]) =X
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT
Cost %N
At January 2011 N-—ZE——&F—A# - - -
Arising on acquisition EUWEMBATRMES
of subsidiaries (M3E41(a) K (b))
(notes 41(a) and (b)) 203,217 854,510 1,057,727
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFE A 7
(note 41(d)(i)) (BFEE41(d)(i) - (6,741) (6,741)
Exchange differences [EH Z=%8 8,048 33,338 41,386
At 31 December 2011 —E——&+=-A=+—HK
and 1 January 2012 —E-—fF—-H—H 211,265 881,107 1,092,372
Exchange differences [EH Z%8 2,079 8,546 10,625
At 31 December 2012 —ZE——-—F+=-H=+—H 213,344 889,653 1,102,997
Accumulated ZiPREEE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2011,31 WH=Z=Z——F—H—H "
December 2011 and —E2——F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2012 F—E——F—H—H - - -
Impairment loss RAFERRZ
recognised in HEEE
the current year - 160,499 160,499
Exchange differences  [E ¥ Z%8 - 1,827 1,827
At 31 December 2012 =—ZE——F+=-A=+—H - 162,326 162,326
Carrying amount BRMEIE
At 31 December 2012 HR=-ZB——H+=-H=+—H 213,344 727,327 940,671
At 31 December 2011 R=ZT——F+=H=+—8H 211,265 881,107 1,092,372
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

24.

GOODWILL (cont’d)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are
determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and budgeted gross margin and turnover during
the period. The Group estimates discount rates
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are
based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the businesses
of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin
and turnover are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the directors for the next five years with the residual
period using the growth rate of 3% (2011: 3%). This
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant markets.

The pre-tax rates used to discount the forecast
cash flows from the Group’s CGU1 and CGU2
are 21.29% (2011: 19.55%) and 19.00% (2011:
22.46%) respectively.

At 31 December 2012, before impairment testing,
goodwill of HK$213,344,000 and HK$889,653,000
were allocated to CGU1 within the general trading
segment and CGU2 within the prepaid cards
segment respectively. Due to changes in market
condition, the Group has revised its cash flow
forecasts for these CGUs. The goodwill allocated
to CGU2 has therefore been reduced to its
recoverable amount of HK$727,327,000 through
recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill
of HK$160,499,000 during the year.

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

24.

TREEFXNEEERAT

B2 (&)

REEL BN 2 IRE SR
EERAEERERE - stEEREE
iRz EREBERBARNEE 28
B BRI -ARENRRE
RE - ASREA AT RRE AT S
HEBRETERREELEN
245 TE BB A BRBLAT E R SRS IR
R PRERAZHESELBNMEE
EBRAEE c RAFIHEEER
ROEE - FEENRREXRAT)
EREEMNRBHmERRAEE -

AEBFR2BESREEA - TR
BEESMAERKRAFRFGHI[
ZEREAIW(ZE——F : 3%)
ZERIHHEE - ZIBRETHE
BEETSZ2FIIRBIERE

AUBRIERANEERESELEEN
1RREELEN2REREB Z2HAT
FED BN EH21.29% (=T ——F :
19.55% ) & 19.00% (=& ——F :
22.46%) °

RZEBE——-F+ZA=+—H R
EE B AT 0 213,344,00058 7t &
889,653,000/8 T 2 ECE 25 Bl DB
E-REGIFAZEHEELEEN
—RkBEFFoBARAZREEELEE N
ZoHRATRER  KEECDES
HUZESHESELEVCRERHE
B e AERASEZERESEAENC
2 & H T 52 160,499,000 78 T
HREEBEEMREZEETKRE S5
727,327,000/8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

25.

120

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

25. REE QR ZRE

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—g-—_f _T——f
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T8t

Unlisted investments in the PRC: RAEZIELHRE :
Share of net assets TREEFE - 44,323
Impairment losses HEEE (822) (19,960)
Disposal of investments in associates HEREE A THRE - (24,363)
Goodwill FEES] 822 822
- 822

Due from an associate — current FE U — BB N B FRIE
— R E) - 2,914

Due from an associate — non-current fEUL — B4 N T FRIE
—3ERE 4,106 -

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest free and repayable after 12 months.

Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December
2012 are as follows:

FEUL — BB & A R IR R EIEA
2B RAM2(EABEE -

REEBENINR-Z-—ZF+=
B=+—B2z&#BUT

Place of Percentage of

incorporation/ equity interest

registration and attributable to

operation the Group
Name MR M  Registered capital A~EEEERE Principal activities
£ REEY HdfMER BAL TEEK
REER (LR ETHE The PRC RMB4,000,000 25% Value added services

BEREELR(EE] s AK#4,000,0007 for prepaid card

(Kanghui Financial (Beijing)
E-Commerce Co. Ltd.)
(“Kanghui”)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

25.

26.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 25. REFENTRZRE(#)
Summarised financial information in respect of the AEEHREQNRZHBER/MEN
Group’s associates is set out below: T
2012 2011
—F-=—F —I——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At 31 December R+—A=+—8
Total assets BmEE 2,507 2,253
Total liabilities meE (7,178) (3,792)
Net liabilities BEFH (4,671) (1,539
Group’s share of associates’ net REBDGHENTZ
assets EEEE - _
Year ended 31 December BEt+t-A=1t—HILLEE
Total revenue G 2,705 676
Total loss for the year FREEE (3,043) (2,029)
The Group has not recognised loss for the year ANEEE I TR F A ETE 761,000
amounting to HK$761,000 (2011: HK$538,000). BT (=ZF——%F 538,000 7T) °
The accumulated losses not recognised were I AT < Rt 18 51,299,000

HK$1,299,000 (2011: HK$538,000).

T(ZF——% :538,000/& T) °

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 26. RiR#EZEHERZIRE

ENTITIES

Group

rEHE
2012 2011
—B—_F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Unlisted investments in the PRC: R ZIELEHRE :
Share of net assets arising from WIEEE 2 EhEEFE

acquisition (note 41(a)) (FFEE41(a)) - 1,102
Share of loss for the year PMEERERE - (1,117)
Exchange differences PE 5 =48 - 15
Kanghui and Hangzhou Qianbao were originally EERMMEREAAREEHLE
jointly controlled entities of the Group. Kanghui and EHER HN=-ZF——F+=H
Hangzhou Qianbao finally became an associate and =+—H  BEERNMNERERLD
a subsidiary of the Group, respectively, as at 31 B BAREEBKE NTIRMBAT o

December 2011.

REEFENEEERAR ¢ —T—ZFF% 121
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B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

27.

28.

122

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

INVENTORIES 27. 78
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Work in progress HE 1,229 1,410
Finished goods BIRK G 880 748
2,109 2,158
TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. FEWERFX

The Group’s trading terms with customers are
mainly on credit. The credit terms generally range
from 30 to 60 days. For new customers, payment
in advance is normally required. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the directors.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables,
based on the invoice date, and net of allowance, is
as follows:

AEBHEFCESGHRAREEAR
B ZEH—MNFI0E60H ° ¥
REEFMS » —RETELTIE -
AREBE KRG 2 FE R TR 4T BRI
= o EETHIF R AL o

REMEZ BWERAR (R R A HE
5 WCSMEREE) 2RE DO
T

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E-CfF —E2——F
HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FHET

Up to 30 days 30HZA 33,199 55,628
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 10,446 9,606
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H 4,137 1,313
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 12,876 3,061
Over 181 days 181HLLE 221 1,196
60,879 70,804

No allowance was made for estimated irrecoverable
trade receivable as at 31 December 2011 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 28. MEWEBRF (&)
As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of R-ZZE——-H%+=ZA=+—H8 E
HK$20,616,000 (2011: HK$5,605,000) were past I BR X 20,616,000 B T (=& — —
due but not impaired. These relate to a number of £ : 5,605,0007% 7T ) B B HA B KR
independent customers for whom there is no recent B ZEMREHES ZRHEHE T
history of default. The aging analysis of these trade BBUEFER ZERWIRR
receivables is as follows: ZERERDNAT ¢
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—B--F ZE——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Up to 30 days 30A 2R 4,371 15
31 to 60 days 31HZ60H 6,709 1,314
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H 8,661 3,080
Over 91 days 91AU L 875 1,196
20,616 5,605
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade RZB-——FRZZE-Z-F+=A
receivables are denominated in RMB as at 31 =t+—B  AEEERERZERE
December 2011 and 2012. BEUARYESHE -
29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 29. AR IE - RE R HMEW
RECEIVABLES EN
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—B--F ZZE——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Prepayments JE{tFhE 18,184 11,868
Deposits %s 33,214 28,972
Other receivables (note) = A ENCIED) 31,228 15,640
82,626 56,480
Long-term deposits classified as PEAFRBEEZ
non-current assets REZRS (27,421) -
55,205 56,480

TEAF X NEEAR AT ¢ —T——FFH
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B R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 29. FBf{#IE - ZE€ Kk H
RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Note:

The other receivables contain loans to independent third-
parties as follows:

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

=, e
FR(#E)

MIEE -

b & Y

HiEW R BER AT B E=F &/

Group
rEEH
Name Terms 2012 2011
®E 1R —E-CF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Company A Guaranteed by a third-party,
NFEA interest at 10% per annum
and HK$2,426,000 and
HK$1,120,000 repayable
on 23 May 2013 and
27 June 2013 respectively
HE=ZFER  FAXE
10% ' DEIR=F—=F1
AZ+=HR=Z—=FRX
A=+t BFEEE2,426,000
7t &% 1,120,0005 T 3,750 -
Company B Unsecured, interest at
‘AFEIB 15% per annum and
HK$3,732,000 repayable
on 24 April 2013
IR FRERB15% > R=
Z-=FNA=-+MBEE
i#3,732,000%8 T 3,732 -
7,482 -

30. FIXED DEPOSITS
The fixed deposits are in RMB and at fixed interest

30. EHIER

EHEFRAARMEE » LUAFF

rate of 4.4% p.a. and therefore are subject to fair RAABZEELEFE  WAmE

value interest rate risk.

ATERIRAR o
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BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

31.

32.

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

BANK AND CASH BALANCES 31. IRITRBEERH
As at 31 December 2012, the bank and R-B-——-HF+ZA=+—H" XK
cash balances of the Group denominated in EEUARBFAEZRITRRESE
RMB amounted to HK$140,636,000 (2011: §84£ 140,636,000 8 T (=& — —
HK$153,426,000). Conversion of RMB into F 1 153,426,00087T) - ARK R
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign BN ABRECPEINEERRH)
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration RAEE - EERNEEERTE)
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.
As at 31 December 2012, bank balances of R-BE-——-F+=ZA=+—H R
HK$69,481,000 (2011: HK$89,558,000) were 1T4#58869,481,0008 T (=& ——
restricted for the purpose of settlement obligation as % : 89,558,000 7T ) AN P EE33F st
set out in note 33. ZREAREBITEESRT
TRADE PAYABLES 32. EEJERRX
The aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables, rEBZREMNER(ZRKIEREH
based on the date of receipt of goods, is as follows: ARE)ZRESMMT ¢
Group
rEE
2012 2011
=F-=—F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTHET
0 to 90 days 0290H 7,853 8,922
91 to 180 days 91HZ=180H 2,870 9,183
181 to 365 days 181H&365H 26 41
10,749 18,146

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables
are denominated RMB as at 31 December 2011
and 2012.

TEAF X NEEAR AT ¢ —T——FFH

REZB-——FRZZ-—Z-F+ZA8
=t—H  FAEEEMERRZKRE
BEUARBEETE -
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33.

34.
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HE

T——F+_A=1+—HItFE

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. FEREARHMENK
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-CfF =Z==F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Settlement obligation (note) SEEEE(MEE) 69,481 89,558
Receipt in advance FEW FRE 14,698 11,658
Other payables HibrEFR1E 2,144 12,590
Accruals BIREH 9,562 2,410
95,885 116,216
Note: ByEE -
The settlement obligations are recognised upon sales of FEEENHERM R KWEEBEFERE
prepaid cards and receipt of respective funds. The amount R ZeREANFZRERESES W
represents unused fund balances of the prepaid cards AEBEEENEANFZFEUENSFEY
that the Group obligates to remit funds to the contracted KEOENBFER - #EH-—RAXSHY
merchants when cardholders make purchase transactions T—Eg%E e TEFRENEERE
using the prepaid cards, the settlement basis is normally the HERRERI
next business day of the transaction date, except for certain
merchants where settlement term is negotiated on an individual
basis.
DUE TO A DIRECTOR 34. BN—BEENIE

The amount was unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.
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BRI AL
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35.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 35.

On 21 January 2011, the Company entered into
the convertible bonds subscription agreement
with Mighty Advantage Enterprises Limited (the
“Vendor”, the then ultimate holding company of
Country Praise Group as defined in note 41(a))
pursuant to which the Company will issue zero
coupon redeemable and convertible bonds in a
maximum aggregate principal amount of HK$700
million to the Vendor to satisfy in part of the
consideration upon the satisfaction of certain
conditions set out below as adjustment to the
consideration of the acquisition of the entire
interest of Country Praise Group (note 41(a)). The
convertible bonds will be issued in various tranches
and the issue of each tranche is subject to the
satisfaction by Country Praise Group of each of
the following scenarios. The convertible bonds
will be matured on 31 December 2015 and can be
converted at any time before maturity at an initial
conversion price (“Initial Conversion Price”) of
HK$0.32 per ordinary share of the Company.

Scenario 1
If during the period between 1 October 2010 and 31
March 2011:

(@ the monetary amounts of prepaid cards
issued by Country Praise Group exceeds
RMB200,000,000, the consideration will be
adjusted upward by HK$25,600,000, which
will be satisfied by the Company issuing
equivalent amount of convertible bonds to the
Vendor attaching therewith conversion rights
to convert into 80,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the Initial Conversion Price;

(b) the number of prepaid cards issued by
Country Praise Group exceeds 185,000, the
consideration will be adjusted upward by
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by
the Company issuing equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor attaching
therewith conversion rights to convert into
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Initial Conversion Price; and

B

TREEFXNEEERAT

BT —F+_A=1+—HItFE

HARENE
RZZB——%—A=t—H &2
F]BEMighty Advantage Enterprises
Limited([EX | BHizF41(a)EE
ZCountry Praise B E R 2 &K
ERARDI LR ESFRER
& Bl RARBETXAESE
T4 - BIFAZEUEE Country Praise
SE2EER (MiaEd1(a)) 2KEE
BE MBELBRTAESLERSE
700,000,000/ gt 2 ZEE A EME &
ABRBES B ABIRE -
ARBRESFEI T > meity
BRESHBEFCountry PraisefE
ERUTEERBRE  FHBTe
ARRESFENR-_FT—HF+=AH
=+—HEH - EEAEARE
BRYTHBREESREAATEER
0328 T([ AL HBE ] Hig o

15R—
MR- E—sE+A-—RE-=
——F=ZA=+—HI1HHE:

(@ Country Praise £ B =
TFERFLSEBEBAR
200,000,000 5t * KB #
# 25,600,000 & T © B
RELHAQAFEBOER
BTRESETRERESX
> BZUBERESKFBR
IRFET AL LB EERR
80,000,000 A AR EBAR ;

b 3%

(b)  Country Praise B 2 FE8{fF
B R EiBi8185,0005k & X
B #% £ #825,600,0005%8 T -
BEBEARESHARAREBRMD
ERBRTESESETRRKRE
(534 BUBBRESKH
THRRETIZRYDS LiREE
# 1%,80,000,000 & A~ 2 B &
B R
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35.
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CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(Cont’d)

Scenario 1 (Cont’d)

(c) the aggregate transaction amounts executed
under the prepaid cards issued by Country
Praise Group exceeds RMB135,000,000, the
consideration will be adjusted upward by
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by
the Company issuing equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor attaching
therewith conversion rights to convert into
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Initial Conversion Price.

Scenario 2
If during the period between 1 April 2011 and 30
September 2011:

(@ the monetary amount of prepaid cards
issued by Country Praise Group exceeds
RMB330,000,000, the consideration will be
adjusted upward by HK$25,600,000, which
will be satisfied by the Company issuing
equivalent amount of convertible bonds to the
Vendor attaching therewith conversion rights
to convert into 80,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the Initial Conversion Price;

(b) the number of prepaid cards issued by
Country Praise Group exceeds 380,000, the
consideration will be adjusted upward by
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by
the Company issuing equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor attaching
therewith conversion rights to convert into
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Initial Conversion Price; and

(c) the aggregate transactions amounts executed
under the prepaid cards issued by Country
Praise Group exceeds RMB250,000,000, the
consideration will be adjusted upward by
HK$25,600,000, which will be satisfied by
the Company issuing equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor attaching
therewith conversion rights to convert into
80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at the Initial Conversion Price.

Notwithstanding the satisfaction of the targets in
Scenario 2, no consideration adjustment in Scenario
1 will be made if none of the targets in Scenario 1 is
met.
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FH-A=t—RHIFE

HARENRE @)

BR—
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(#&)

Country Praise52E|2$1T 278
FFEZRFHELSEHEBER
AR #%135,000,0007t @ K&
#% + #825,600,00058 7T * B
EREZBRALNTEBQE
FEBETESSENTRKRE
(344 BZUBRRESH
ERRETIRYS LR EE
#2 £, 80,000,000 f% 48 1t 7] &
‘AR o

)III]

*

\»

BR=

MR- E-——FWNA—-HEZ

M)Hi

——FNA=1THLEHHE:
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Country Praise &
N‘F?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂk
330,000,000 7t @ X 1&
#325,600,0007%8 JC °
EH—rEEZIK’ijﬁLF]%E
TRZSEENTBRKRESX
1 Bzl IR (& 5 M 51
IRAE IR D H IR EEIR R
80,000,000 A< X B1 B MR

Jﬁf
WRAN
ﬁ?rh&*?“'

Country PraisefE @ 2 (T
E-FEERHE380,0005 & £
B 4% + #825,600,0005% 7T >
BERESHALQTEBRRM
EFRTESESEMNTHRR
(344 BZUBRES
TR IR L HBRE
2 i3 £ 80,000,000 & 28 2 T
ZER R

mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Country Praise52E2$1T 278
TFEZRIFHEBEASHEBR
A R #250,000,0007T @ X1
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BREZBRALNTEBQE
FEBETRESBENTRRKRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

35. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

(Cont’d)

Scenario 3

If the audited consolidated financial statements of
Country Praise Group, prepared based on HKFRSs,
show that the consolidated net profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 is not less
than RMB35,000,000, the maximum consideration
in form of convertible bonds will be adjusted to
HK$500,000,000 (inclusive of the convertible bonds
issued under Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 above
(where applicable)), the balance of the outstanding
adjusted consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company issuing appropriate equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor.

Scenario 4

If the audited consolidated financial statements
of Country Praise Group, prepared based on
HKFRSs, show that the consolidated net profit for
the financial year ended 31 December 2011 is not
less than RMB35,000,000 and the consolidated net
profit for the financial year ending 31 December
2012 is not less than RMB70,000,000, the
maximum consideration in form of convertible
bonds will be adjusted to HK$700,000,000
(inclusive of the convertible bonds issued under
Scenario 1, Scenario 2 and Scenario 3 above
(where applicable)), the balance of the outstanding
adjusted consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company issuing appropriate equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor.

TREEFXNEEERAT

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

35.

HARENRE @)

BR=

fiCountry Praise EEREF B
BRELZEAFRH 2 REREE T
HhEkBER BE-Z——F+=A
=+ —HLEMBEEZGFESAERR
D AR ¥35,000,0007T @ A AT
REFAFEAZESREKARE
500,000,000 7t (B#EZE EXIER
—RER=GRBERBRME) BT
ZABRES)  EARZA 2R
REHEZSBERQATEBOE S %
TEEZRESERRES (T -

AL

fiiCountry Praise S ERIEEH B
BHREZERRHE  KRBEZRGE MK
WERBR BE-_ZEZ——F+=8
=t+t—HLEBHRFEEZHFEHAFFR
DA A R # 35,000,000 @ K&
EF-FE-——F+-A=+—HIH
BFEEZGZEHARMNTIORARYE
70,000,0007T * AR EH A
A2 &eREZFHEZE700,000,000
BT(EEZRLXER— BRZR
BR=(REABRME)ZT2T
BERES)  MAXT2ERABRE
BREES A QT ERBOE L BTE
EvEESENTBRRESI(T -
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35.
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CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(Cont’d)

Scenario 5

If the audited consolidated financial statements of
Country Praise Group, prepared based on HKFRSs,
show that the consolidated net profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 is less than
RMB35,000,000 but the consolidated net profit for
the financial year ending 31 December 2012 is not
less than RMB70,000,000, the consideration in form
of convertible bonds shall be adjusted based on the
average of the consolidated net profit of Country
Praise Group for the said two financial years
multiplied by a price-earning multiple of 12 times,
provided that the maximum consideration adjusted
pursuant to this scenario shall not be more than
HK$700,000,000 (inclusive of the convertible bonds
issued under Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 above
(where applicable)), the balance of the outstanding
adjusted consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company issuing appropriate equivalent amount of
convertible bonds to the Vendor.

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

35.

HARENRE @)

BRh

fiCountry Praise e EREF B
BRELEAGR CRERGEY
BERRERN BE-T——F+=
B=1+T—HIEUBEEZHFZEHAF
DA A R # 35,000,000 7T ¢ BE
E-E-—_—F+ZA=1+—HLH
BEEZHREHENFTIORARE
70,000,0007T * ARIARESAF
N2 ESRE LR ES BREE
Country Praisef Bz 194 &40
Ao FEUTBRI2EEHAE
REBRAZRESNRETESEB
700,000,000 7t (B¥EZ EXBER
—RERZ(GERBRME) T
ZABRIRES) » MRS 2L
REHBESHALTEBOEH %
TEECRSSENTTRRESX
o

Group
rEE
HK$°000
FHET
Fair value of contingent consideration payable R=Z——F A=+ \HZEHK
upon completion of acquisition of Country W BECountry Praisef B 1% FE{T
Praise Group on 28 February 2011 FAREBEZAFE 850,588
Issuance of convertible bonds for Scenario 1 FhiER —ETABRKRES (80,393)
Issuance of convertible bonds for Scenario 2 FiiER Z T BRKRES (66,361)
Fair value change N EZE (230,986)
Fair value of contingent consideration payable A=&——%+=-A=+—H
at 31 December 2011 EASAREZATE 472,848
Issuance of convertible bonds for Scenario 3  FiER=R{TABRKRES (220,208)
Fair value change NFEZE (252,640)

Fair value of contingent consideration payable R =Z&—=—f+=-8=+—H

at 31 December 2012
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35.

36.

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 35. mAENRE#E)
(Cont’d)
The fair values of contingent consideration payable RZZBE——FZAZ+NBR=Z
at 28 February 2011 and 31 December 2011 are ——F+ZA=+—8 ' EF=HA
based on valuation results of an independent firm REZATFEDERBILIEEMGE
of professional valuer, by using a probability model. RNAIZEEER UL At
The principal assumptions used in the valuation B - ARAMEEEX 2 ETERRZRA
model are as follows: T
At At
28 February 31 December
2011 2011
R=—Z——%F R=ZE——F
—A=+\B +=ZA=t—H
Expected life FEHAHARR 4.84 years 4.00 years
4.84%F 4.00%F
Exercise period 1TEHEARS Issue date Issue date
to maturity to maturity
date date
BTEZE BITHZE
ZIHAR ZIHA R
Effective interest rate =y A 9.132% 22.541%
Share price IR DB HK$0.400 HK$0.201
0.4007& 7T 0.201%& T
Conversion price HimER HK$0.320 HK$0.320
0.320& 7T 0.320& T
Risk-free rate 920 8 B R B R 1.797% 0.767%
Expected volatility FEE R = 4717% 47.65%
Since the Group cannot fulfill the conditions R-E-—-—F+ZA=+—H"H
in Scenario 4 and Scenario 5, the fair value of RAEBAREEXNBERORBERE
contingent consideration payable is nil as at 31 2 BNSRAREZAFES
December 2012. Fo
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 36. AERES

During the year, Country Praise Group has fulfilled
the conditions in Scenario 3 (2011: Scenario
1 and Scenario 2) as set out in note 35 to the
financial statements. Accordingly, the Company
issued convertible bonds of principal amounts
of HK$346,400,000 on 29 March 2012 (2011:
HK$76,800,000 and HK$76,800,000 on 22 July
2011 and 20 October 2011 respectively) to Mighty
Advantage Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr.
Guan Guisen.

TEAF X NEEAR AT ¢ —T——FFH

JAER » Country PraiseEEEZ
RO ERERMFBMEARBR =2
FRHE(ZE——F  BR—KkER
D) HM RATFRZZT—ZF=
B Z+ N BE177% £346,400,000
BLZABRRES(ZE——F
PRR—F——FLtAZ+=ZHK
—E-—F+AZt+HBETESE
76,800,0007& 7t & 76,800,000/ 7T
FHESHRLEZERES ZMighty
Advantage Limited °
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36.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont’d)

Convertible bonds issued during the year are
convertible into 1,082,500,000 (2011: 480,000,000)
ordinary shares of the Company at any time
between the date of issue of the convertible bonds
and maturity date of 31 December 2015.

The movement of convertible bonds during the year

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

36.

AR ES (&)
FRBT2ARRKRESTHITBRR
BSFRTRAHEZIHE=-=Z—F
F+-A=+—HILHEERRR
#1,082,500,000 1 (=& — — £ :
480,000,000% ) Z B o

FRABRES BT ©

is set out below.

Convertible bonds issued upon fulfillment of
ERUTERARTZTRARES

132

2011 2012
A o A
Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3
BR- - ) ER=
Equity  Liability Equity  Liability Equity  Liability
component component component component component component
RE¥S  BE®S  BEds  AE¥Y  RE®S 0 8END
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
THET TR TR TAR THER TR
Atinception, at fairvalue ¥k » RAFE 35,719 44,674 31,203 35,158 33,804 186,404
Interest for the period from B EHALBES
inception to conversionor  EX .
end of the year - 61 - 73 - 12,283
Carrying amount just before % # 71  REE
conversion 35,719 44,735 31,203 35,231 33,804 198,687
Conversion during the year Fii & (35,719) (44,735) (31,209) (35,231) (22,093)  (125,278)
At 31 December R+=A=t-H - - - 11,711 73,409

The interest charged for the year is calculated by
applying effective interest rates of 17.95% to the
liability components of convertible bonds issued
under Scenario 3 for the period from inception to
respective conversion or the end of the year (2011:
13% and 20% under Scenario 1 and Scenario 2
respectively).

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2012

FRAEHEIDNINRSBEINBRES
BRBRHERFERBEER =M
T BRRESFEESD UEKRF
ZT17.95%E(ZF——F : RiE
BR—ERERZZFESHE13%
K20%) °
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont’d)
The fair values of all convertible bonds at dates
of issuance are based on valuation results of
an independent firm of professional valuer. The
principal assumptions used in the valuation model

are as follows:

BE—_T—

36. AIRREZS &)
FrERBRRESZ 2 X FEIRET
AHREB Y ERMEEQIR2MEE
BRMEGEH - AREERKXZEE
BRERWMT :

Convertible bonds issued upon fulfillment of

“HE+-A=t+—HIFE

BHAMERARTZTARES
2011 2012
22--F g-ZF
Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3
fEn- fER= Rz
Equity Liability Equity Liability Equity Liability
component component component component component component
&% 8RS  E&¥D &Y  EEE7 &EH2
Principal amount of EETTRRES 2 N/A  HK$76,800,000 N/A HK$76,800,000 N/A  HK$346,400,000
convertible bonds issued &4 TER T68000008%T < THEA 76800000%7%  FEFA 34640000087
Expected life SR 4.44 years 444 years  4.20 years 420years  3.75 years 3.75 years
4445 4445 4.20F 420F 375 375
Share price at the date BERZROER HK$0.305 NA  HKS$0.265 NA  HKS$0.154 N/A
of issue 030587 TER 026587 TER 015487 TER
Conversion price RBER HK$0.320 N/A  HK$0.320 N/A  HK$0.320 N/A
032087 FER  030%T TER  030%T TER
Expected volatility LTS N/A N/A N/A
45.8% TBE  475% TEE  492% ek
Risk-free rate BERHHE N/A N/A N/A
1.033% TEE  0666% TEE  0393% ek

The directors estimate the fair value of the
liability component of the convertible bonds
at 31 December 2012 to be approximately
HK$76,215,000. This fair value has been calculated
by discounting the future cash flows at the market

rate.

EEMFT O KRZE—Z=-F+=ZA
=+—H: IREFEEHI 2
DN ELNA76,215,000/8 7T A
FEDEBETSHLRIEBRRIER
EREZFAGTE
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37.

134

DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets/

(liabilities) recognised by the Group.

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

37. EIEFIE

UTAAEERENEZIELERIR
gE/(8fE) -

PRC

dividend

withholding Tax

tax losses Total

&t

REIRS

A BIRER

(=M=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2011 R=-—E——F—HA—H - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ui — kB A 7 - 3,827 3,827
Charge to profit or loss for st AR FEE
the year (note 11) (FfFsE11)
- origination and reversal —ERFMHER 2
of temporary EERER
differences (1,222) (2,076) (3,298)
Exchange differences EHE%E (81) 100 69
At 31 December 2011 and R=F——4%
1 January 2012 +ZA=+—HBK
—E——%—F—H (1,253) 1,851 598
Credit to profit or loss for ERZEARFEIRZS
the year (note 11) (MgzE11)
—origination and reversal —ERFMEE>
of temporary EERER
differences 1,249 - 1,249
Exchange differences 5 E%R 4 15 19
At 31 December 2012 HN-_E——F
+=A=+—H - 1,866 1,866

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for statement of financial
position purposes:

RYBRRBERMS » LT RIEL
BIRGER (RIHER) 2 247

2012 2011
—g——5 —z_—&
HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE - (1,253)
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEE 1,866 1,851

1,866 598
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BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

37.

DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period the Group has
unused tax losses of HK$21,038,0000 (2011:
HK$17,470,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$7,464,000 (2011:
HK$7,404,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$13,574,000 (2011: HK$10,066,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$13,574,000 (2011: HK$10,066,000) that will
expire as follows:

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

37.

IEIERIE ()
RREPEEER - XEBEARY
AR5 E51821,038,000/8 T (==
— — 4 117,470,000/ 7t) * A F
DUIKSE R R EF - MEBECHE
SIEERIIEE 7,464,000/8 T (==
——% : 7,404,00087T) - HRE
EFERIARFEFRIFE - MR T
13,574,000 78 7T I 7 # 52 IE HE &
HEE(ZZE——% 10,066,000
BIT) c T ARERBEEEBZE
13,574,000 T (=& ——F :
10,066,000 7T) AU T E£H @
o

2012 2011

—F——-F —F——F

HK$’000 HK$°000

TERT THET

Year 2015 —E-1FE 8,366 7,973
Year 2016 —E-REE 2,167 2,093
Year 2017 —E—tEE 3,041 _
13,574 10,066

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised is approximately
HK$44,068,000 (2011: Nil). No liability has been
recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing
of reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future.

TREEFXNEEERAT

RZIE——-F+ZA=+—H H
WHEBERELHIEEEZHNE AR
AOBEFNEEEREEZHAKE
#)44,068,000/8 T (=& ——F :
) o AR E B AT IE i B IR Sl
BROFRHEZECEE BEZEY
BEETER A RARRERE - I &R
ZEEERBATMEE -
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B R TR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-_A=1—"BLHFE
38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. B
Number
of shares Amount
RAEE o}
Note 000 HK$’000
M EE TR FET
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 BRMEE0.01E T
(2011: HK$0.01) each (Z&——%:
0.01/8T) 2&BER
At 1 January 2012 and N-—E——F—AH—AH
31 December 2012 BE—E——EF+=H
=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SREE0.01B T
(2011: HK$0.01) each —E——fF
0.018Bx) 2B
At 1 January 2011 HR-Z——%—F—H 2,640,889 26,409
Issue of shares on placement RELERRITRGD (a) 625,000 6,250
Consideration shares issued E2RITRERD 41(a) 218,750 2,187
Convertible bonds converted into  Hia &R =2 Al ER 36
shares Bt 480,000 4,800
At 31 December 2011 HNoE——5
+=A=+—H 3,964,639 39,646
Exercise of share options TIEERAE 40 35,000 350
Convertible bonds converted into 5 #5854 =2 Al #pR 36
shares &% 707,500 7,075
At 31 December 2012 R-_E——&F
+=ZHB=+—H 4,707,139 47,071
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38.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

(@) A placing was completed on 9 March 2011. An
aggregate of 625,000,000 placing shares at a price
of HK$0.32 per placing share have been successfully
placed by Oriental Patron Asia Limited (the “Placing
Agent”) to 4 investors. Details of the placing were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 11
November 2010, 23 November 2010, 26 November
2010 and 9 March 2011.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to
shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, if any,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or
sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies and processes during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is
that for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock
Exchange it has to have a public float of at least
25% of the shares. The Group receives a report
from the share registrars weekly on substantial
share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year.

HE

38.

TREEFXNEEERAT

T——_F+_A=+—HItFE

eNE )

(@) —BRER-ZE——F=AhB%
Moo REINERA T ([EBHENRE
ADEER0.32B T ZER - KIh
[4 %% & & & & 625,000,000
BERERSD BMEFTEZHFBERAE
AFABHAEZZE-ZTE+—-H+—
A -=ZZ2-ZF+-A=+=8 "
—E-ZF+—-A=Z+ARBR=Z
——FEZANBZAEHE -

AEEEXREEBEREEERLRE
B FEEEED  AEERMA
BESRRTROHNDBEMR S
FEARRAGE  THARRERE
EEHk

REBRBEBRIR 2 Z(CREEH
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BHBZE -

RER B AR H B SR P £ e Y
M-I ERERES - AF
BARZFED2% RO B LRFR
B - AEEESBEERONBFERT
EEHIIRIFAREREZEAR
DEDRE - ZWEBRTARER
BEFENFEET25% 2R -

—E-FEER 137



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

39.

138

RESERVES
Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

39. f#ME
AEE

consolidated statement of comprehensive income

and statement of changes in equity.

FEBRBSERAZHNGER
HWARKEZZERZT -

Company b N/NE]
Retained
Share Share- - Convertible profits/
premium  Gontributed option bondsequity ~ Warrant (accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
TRRES RERR/
ROGER  SARS BRERG  EhEE IRERRE (ZHER) it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén TR
At 1 January 2011 R=F--5-5-H 90,647 70,121 3,158 - - (144114 19,812
Total comprehensive income FR2EWALE
for the year - - - - - 2182 227,822
Issue of shares on placement WEERERTRE 175,696 - - - - - 175,69
Issuance of convertible bonds &7 T#MRES - - - 66,922 - - 66,922
Exercise of convertible bonds 1T A/ #kES 142,088 - - (66,922) - - 75,166
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEHEBAR 85,313 - - - - - 85,313
At31December201iand  H=ZE--f
1 January 2012 TZA=1t-AR
“E-£-f-R 493,744 70,121 3,158 - - 83,708 650,731
Total comprehensive income  ER2E A%
for the year - - - - - 199,978 199,978
Conversion of convertible  Biam#RES
bonds 140,296 - - (22,093) - - 118203
Share-based payments R AFE - - 6,022 - - - 6,022
Issuance of convertible bonds /TR ES - - - 33,804 - - 33,804
Exercise of share options 1T RE 6,020 - 2,779) - - - 3,241
Release upon lapse of share  REBRELMERE
options - - (379) - - 3N -
Issuance of unlisted warrants %73 £ HEl g - - - - 523 - 523
At 31 December 2012 W-E--&
TZB=1+-H 640,060 70,121 6,022 1,711 523 284,065 1,012,502

China Innovationpay Group Limited e Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

39. RESERVES (Cont’d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be applied in paying
up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company as
fully paid bonus shares or in providing for the
premiums payable on repurchase of shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group arose
as a result of the Group reorganisation
implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2000
and represented the excess of the then
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

Share-option reserve

The share-option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(q) to the financial
statements.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess
of the fair value of the Group’s share of net
assets over the purchase price. The amount
is retained in the consolidated statement of
financial position until the disposal of the
subsidiaries.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-
distributable, is appropriated from the profit
after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
under the applicable laws and regulations in
the PRC.

BE_T—

“HE+-A=t+—HIFE

39. fEfE@#E)
HEMTEREN

()

(i)

(if)

(iv)

v)

TREAF S NEEAR AT ¢ —T——FFH

R 17a 1Bk
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EZ2ERBRTROMELEZ
BB ZERETUDIK
HEAN 2 B) A B A LAY AR
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Z R o

A BER
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ZFEREBHALARD LT
MmET 2 EEERARES
ERRBHEARER 24
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BZEEEEFEREITR
AEEZERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

39. RESERVES (Cont’d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

140

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange difference arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with accounting policies set out
in note 4(e) to the financial statements.

BE-_ZT—

“HE+ A=t BIFE

39. fRE#E)

REEERB N E)

Vi) EXEE
ERfHEEEEEBRES
SNEETE B B 3R AR 2 BB INE

E8 o 2RELRBEM R
R FEA)TEEARRE
I o

Convertible bonds equity reserve (vii) AR ES R AE
Convertible bonds has an option component AMRESEEEESD -
that enable the holder to convert it into BEAUBESBRARQT
ordinary shares of the Company, and the fair ZEBR MZEEEZQ
value of such option at inception is credited FEZAGTATRRESE
to convertible bonds equity reserve. Upon midE o NG SR
conversion, the balance will be transferred to AR B EER -
share capital and share premium account.
Warrant reserve (viii) R EEFE
Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds RREEFEBBRTARAAR
received from the issue of warrants of the iz #E 2% W BN 2 B 18 IR F
Company. The reserve will be transferred to o ZREBENITERRE
share capital and share premium accounts EE o BBEERARRGOR
upon the exercise of the warrants. BER -
On 16 July 2012, the Company issued RZZE—Z-FtA+7B8"
300,000,000 unlisted warrants at an issue RARRBREGE 2%
price of HK$0.001743 per warrant pursuant TESHRAREF0.001743
to a subscription agreement. Each warrant & JT » 2 17 300,000,000 12
entitles the holder to subscribe for one FLEMARER - BHRR
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at an initial ERFETFHEEAERN - TR
subscription price of HK$0.4 per share at any RREEFRITHHETESF
time within 5 years commencing from the date A BYOTABEESR04E
of issue of the warrants. TR E - REE0.01EITZ
BER o
Movements in number of underlying shares of RREEFEHEROHBE 28
the warrants: g
At Issued Exercised Lapsed
1 January during during during 31 December
2012 the year the year the year 2012

Date of issue R-B--% —E-CE
B7AH -A—H ERET ERTE ER%M t=A=t-H
16 July 2012 “B-ZEtAtAA - 300,000,000 - - 300,000,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. RESERVES (Cont’d) 39. fEE4#E)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d) REMERBNE)
(viii) Warrant reserve (Cont’d) (viii) R EE 1 (E)

RBEHBEER - K2
R ARITERREZRRANT -

Terms of unexpired and unexercised warrants
at the end of the reporting period:

Number of
underlying
shares of
the warrants
HERAEHE

Date of issue Exercisable period

RITHES TR

16 July 2012
—=—=—fF+tA+XE

16 July 2012 to 15 July 2017
—E-——FtA+XRBAE
—E—+tHFtAt+HH

300,000,000

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 40.
The Company has two employee share option AATREMEREEBRESTS
schemes, namely Share Option Scheme C and New DR ABRESTECKRITBREST
Share Option Scheme. 2l

AR 32 Y FR78

On 26 April 2002, the Company adopted Share
Option Scheme C under which share options to
subscribe for shares of the Company may be
granted under the terms and conditions stipulated
in Share Option Scheme C.

R=FZ=_FNMA=1+xA > X2
EIERAN B ST BIC - B AT ARIE
fB AR RE ST BICTT B3 2 R R R AR A+
REAREA DT RN 2 BIRHE -

At the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 3 May 2012, shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a New Share Option
Scheme.

TREAF S NEEAR AT ¢ —T——FFH

R-ZB——FRHAZHET2ZAEAA
ARRBEFRELE  AQTREH
AR AT IR RERT & o
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40.

142

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Under Share Option Scheme C, the Company may
grant options to employees of the Group (including
directors of the Company) or at the absolute
discretion of the directors to invite any person who
has contributed to the Group’s business to take up
options to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time, excluding for this purpose shares
issued on the exercise of options. The subscription
price will be determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of
(i) the nominal value of the ordinary shares, (i) the
average of the closing price of the ordinary shares
quoted on the GEM on the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (jii) the
closing price of ordinary shares quoted on the GEM
on the date of grant, which must be a business day.

Under New Share Option Scheme, the Company
operates it for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants include the full-time and part-time
employees, executives, officers, directors, business
consultants, agents, legal and financial advisers
of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries.
The Scheme became effective on 3 May 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 5 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the New Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of shares options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted
to a Connected Person, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later than
five years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the New Share Option
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

TREAF S NEEAR AT ¢ —T——FFH
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40.

144

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The fair value of share options granted is
recognised in profit or loss taking into account
the probability that the options will vest over the
vesting period. Upon the exercise of the options the
resulting shares issued and recorded as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded in
the share premium account. At the time when the
share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve is transferred
to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to retained profits. Lapsed
options, prior to their exercise date, are deleted
from the outstanding options. All equity-settled
share-based compensation expense is settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in
cash.

The grantees may exercise the options in whole
or in part by giving exercise notice to the grantor
at any time during the option period provided that
the grantees shall exercise the options to acquire
the option shares in accordance with the following
vesting schedule:

Vesting schedule

One year after the grant date 30%
Two years after the grant date 30%
Three years after the grant date 40%
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40.

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 40. LA ZASRIE(#)
The following table disclosed details of the TREZBRETECETART
Company’s share options under Share Option BREZHE RERBE=-Z
Scheme C and the movements during the year ——F+ZA=+—HULEFEZ#®
ended 31 December 2011: B
Number of share options
BREHE
At Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1January  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2011 the year the year 2011
RZE--F E RZE--F
it A5 1 1768 -A-H i/ &N R +=B=1-A
Share Option Scheme C
BB EC
QOther persons
HfAL
14 May 2002 14 May 2003 to 13 May 2012 HK$0.1883 750,000 - - 750,000
ZZR2ERATNA ER-ERATHAE 018837
“E-CERATER
13 August 2008 13 August 2009 to 12 August 2018 HK$0.06 1,714,583 - - 1,714,583
“EE\ENAT=ZH “EENENATEA 0067
“E-\ENRTZH
10 November 2009 10 November 2011 o 9 November 2019 HK$0.1026 38,750,000 - - 38,750,000
ZZENET-RATH Z2--Ef-AtHEE 010267
“E-nE+-ANA
Total i 41,214,583 - - 41214583

TREEFXNEEERAR ¢ T —FFR
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40.

146

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The following table disclosed details of the
Company’s share options under Share Option
Scheme C and New Share Option Scheme and the

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

40. LR AR E(#E)
T FRIG B R BIC K 5758 M i
HBEETAQADEREZHE &
ENBE=-ZE——F+=A=+—

movements during the year ended 31 December HIEFE2SE :
2012:
Number of share options
BREHA
At Grant  Cancelled/  Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2012 the year the year the year 2012
RZ8-ZF £ R-8-ZF
it B (& igid -A-H ERRH i/ KM R +=B=t-A
| Share Option Scheme C
| BB R EIC
Other persons
HfiAL
14 May 2002 14 May 2003 to HK$0.1883 750,000 - (750,000) - -
13 May 2012
ZERCERATRA “ZT-FRATHMAZ 018837
Z5-ZERBT=A
13 August 2008 13 August 2009 to HK$0.06 1,714,583 - (1,714,583) - -
12 August 2018
ZZEN\EN\BTZH ZERAENATIA 006ER
“E-\ENAT=H
10 November 2009 10 November 201110 HK$0.1026 38,750,000 - (3,750,000)  (35,000,000) -
9 November 2019
ZEENET-RATH “2--F1-AtHE 0102687
“2-NE+-ANA
Sub-Total gt 41,214,583 - (6,214,583  (35,000,000) -
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B RS SRR MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE
40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 40. AR ZASFIE(#)
Number of share options
BERESE
At Grant  Cancelled/  Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2012 the year the year the year 2012
R-B-ZF Eh R-B-Z%
RtiAH gL f1%E -R-H ERRM /& Emfi® tZA=t-H
II. New Share Option Scheme
Il 5788 R et &
Directors and Chief
Executives
ESRRARTHAR
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to HK$0.25 - 6,840,000 - - 6,840,000
“E-ZEtARA 5 July 2017 0.25%7
“E-ZEtARRE
“E-t§tREA
6 July 2014 to HK$0.25 - 6,840,000 - - 6,840,000
5 July 2017 0.25%7
“E-MELARAZE
“E-t§tREA
6 July 2015t HK$0.25 - 9,120,000 - - 9,120,000
5 July 2017 0.25%7
“E-TELARAE
“E-t§tREA
Other employees
RthfEE
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to HK$0.25 - 54,477,000 - - 54,477,000
ZE-CEtARA 5 July 2017 0.25%7
“E-ZEtARRE
“E-t§tREA
6 July 2014 to HK$0.25 - 54,477,000 - - 54,477,000
5 July 2017 0.25%7
“E-MELARAZE
“E-t§tREA
6 July 2015t HK$0.25 - 72,636,000 - - 72,636,000
5 July 2017 0.25%7
“E-TELARAE
“E-t§tREA
Sub-total N - 204,390,000 - - 204,390,000
Total share options ERELY 41214583 204,390,000 (6,214,583 (35,000,000) 204,390,000
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 40.
If the options remain unexercised after a period of
5 years from the date of grant, the options expire.
Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the

148

Group.

Details of the share options outstanding during the

year are as follows:

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

CARS AR X2 A 5018 (4)

ft 88 AR AR A 4 1 ) 98 31 5 47 SO
BADKITHE » BREBRE I -
fitifE SBEBIA M - BRI HOR
Uy o

FRERTEBREFBUT

2012 2011
i i

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

share exercise share exercise

options price options price

BREHE MEFHTERE BREHE METHTRE

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Outstanding at the FMERITE

beginning of the year 41,214,583 0.1024 41,214,583 0.1024

Granted during the year £ H 204,390,000 0.2500 - -

Exercised during FRNTE

the year (35,000,000) 0.1026 - -

Lapsed during the year &Rk (5,464,583) 0.0892 - -

Expired during the year ERZIH] (750,000) 0.1883 - -
Outstanding at the end F K& KITE

of the year 204,390,000 0.2500 41,214,583 0.1024
Exercisable at the end FEXR7F17{F

of the year - 41,214,583 0.1024

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the
year was HK$0.24. The options outstanding at the
end of the year have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 4.51 years (2011: 7.67 years) and
the exercise prices of HK$0.25 (2011: HK$0.06 to

HK$0.1883).
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BHE—T——

FH-A=t—HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 40. LA SZASTRIE(#)
During the year, options were granted on 6 July RER BRENR-Z—_—F+tA
2012. The estimated fair value of the options AERE  RZEREBEREZM
granted on that date is HK$22,095,000. st AF{E A22,095,000/8 TT ©
The fair value was calculated using the Binomial "$TEJ3E: HXHAREEBRNG
Option pricing model. The inputs into the model are c RABK ZEIEBEWT :
as follows:
2012
—E-——F
Share price R BH HK$0.25
0.25/8 7T
Exercise price per share BRTEE HK$0.25
0.25/8 7T
Expected volatility FEHRR IR 53.43%
Expected life FEETE H 5 years
5%
Risk free rate 42 2| s SR B = 0.34%
Expected dividend yield SEEEHIISES 0%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating FEHRRERAARROERRBE
the historical volatility of the Company’s share price REZRBRESE - RXAFMA
over the previous 5 years. The expected life used in B FHABREZESNES -
the model was the contractual life of the options.
41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 41. #ZeBEEamERMET

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Acquisition of Country Praise Group

On 28 February 2011, the Group obtained
control of Country Praise Enterprises Limited
(“Country Praise”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Country
Praise Group”) by acquiring 100% of the
issued share capital of Country Praise for
consideration as set out below. Country
Praise Group was principally engaged in
electronic payment service and related
trading business. Country Praise Group was
beneficially owned by Mr. Guan Guisen. The
acquisition is for the purpose of deployment
of the Group’s application of self-developed
2D barcode technology to the fast growing
electronic payment service industry in the
PRC.

hEA

MXNEEBRAR * —F

(@) UWEECountry Praise5XE
R=ZZFE——F=-A=+N
B> KEBUT XM
K& » &8 W Country
Praise Enterprises Limited
([ Country Praise ) Z&BE 3
TIRZ - B Country Praise
&/H\Fﬁ}ﬁﬁj( 54E[ Country
Praise &£ B ) =z 1= Hl| #& o
Country Praise&E B ZEH{E
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41.

150

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(@) Acquisition of Country Praise Group
(Cont’d)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Country Praise Group acquired as

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

41. HZEBREREXRMT(#E)

(@) UWEECountry PraiseXE
(#)
UL EE B 5 BT W B8 Country
Praise B2 A ZBIEER

at its date of acquisition is as follows: BEZAFEMT :
HK$°000
FET
Net liabilities acquired: Wi BEFE
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ MEKRRE 3,907
Investments in jointly controlled entities RERZEHIBEZRE 1,102
Deferred tax asset FERBEE 3,827
Inventory FE 30
Trade receivables FEUBR TR 4,147
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables FE{FUIE - & R HERKRT 54,374
Held-to-maturity financial assets SR ERE 5,928
Due from a jointly controlled entities FEUN — R H B HI S FIE 390
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS 46 50,058
Trade payables FE1SBRRR (19,212)
Accruals and other payables FEStE AR EMEATE (128,031)
Non-controlling interests IR R (1,688)
(25,168)
Goodwill (note 24) 2 (MtaE24) 1,043,256
1,018,088
Satisfied by: AT 5 A S E
Cash Be 80,000
Consideration shares RERHD 87,500
Contingent consideration payable (note 35)  FE{J =k A1 (FiEE35) 850,588
1,018,088
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEELE RSN T FEE .
Cash consideration paid SNREERE (80,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WECRERREEEY 50,058
(29,942)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(a)

Acquisition of Country Praise Group
(Cont’d)

The fair value of the 218,750,000 ordinary
shares of the Company issued as part of
the consideration paid was determined on
the basis of the closing market price of the
Company’s ordinary shares on the acquisition
date.

The fair value of the contingent consideration
payable of HK$850,588,000 was valued by
an independent professional valuer, using a
probability model. Details of the contingent
consideration payable is set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

Country Praise Group contributed
approximately HK$263,095,000 and
HK$54,525,000 to the Group’s turnover and
profit for the year respectively for the period
between the date of acquisition and the end
of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on
1 January 2011, total Group turnover from
continuing operations for the year would have
been HK$344,367,000, and profit for the year
from continuing operations would have been
HK$271,894,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the turnover and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2011, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

BHE—T——

41.

hEA

mAan

(a)

M NEEBRAR ® =

FH-A=t—HIFE

REBRME@E)

W EECountry Praise5E
(&)

EHBEMNRE—BH 2R
72 817218,750,0008% & i@
Bz AFE DREKEE
AARARE BRI EEE -

ERfSAREzZQXFE
850,588,0008 5t * T E R
iﬁﬁ{aﬁﬂﬁzmﬁﬁ
s U EEL T EE -
F‘Eﬁ‘i%ﬁf‘fzni 15 & A Bt
IR MIEESS ©

RUE BB ZERS R
@ - Country Praise5 B %
Ao AEBEFRE EE KRG
R EFE%9263,095,00078 T &
54,525,000/ T ©

HMEER=-E——F—8—
HERXK ~XEBEFERAREBE
BEKEER I EEEEEE
£ 344,367,000/8 T * F R
REFELEERZNER
271,894,00058 7T - BEZE R
E/ERBARE - WIEH AP
KWBER=-ZE——F—8F—
HEZRZEBRT » ZXEER
NEREES o EEBEREE
B TTRIEBRRESE
ZFEA o
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41.

162

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(b)

Acquisition of other subsidiaries
On 6 April 2011, the Group acquired 100% of
equity interest of Beijing Tiantongsaibo for a
cash consideration of HK$1,187,000.

On 1 July 2011, the Group acquired a further
30% equity interest of Hangzhou Qianbao,
a formerly 50% jointly controlled entity, for a
cash consideration of HK$2,432,000.

On 18 October 2011, the Group acquired
a further 45% equity interest of Kanghui, a
formerly 50% jointly controlled entity, for a
cash consideration of HK$2,442,000.

The acquisitions are for the purpose of
diversifying the Group’s business into
information system service sector and
strengthening the Group’s prepaid card
business in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 41.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(b)

BE-_T——HF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

Acquisition of other subsidiaries (Cont’d)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the above entities acquired as

mERERBRME @)

(b) UWABEfEHIE AR (&)
REWE B » Euipris
ERCITRAINEERAED

at respective dates of acquisitions are as FEWT
follows:
Beijing Hangzhou
Tiantongsaibo Qianbao Kanghui Total
ERXEER EE B ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER TER TER
Net assets acquired: KB EE T
Property, plant and equipment #1% - BRE k&1 582 33 1,084 1,699
Trade receivables FEUERSK 2,609 437 - 3,046
[nventories RE 797 - - 797
Prepayments, deposits and {508 » LR EM
other receivables e 121 25,685 956 26,762
Bank and cash balances RITRAEER 975 7,156 187 8,318
Trade and other payables B R R EMERS (474) (33,6006) (3,141) (37,221)
Non-controlling interests FERER - 17 46 63
4,610 (278) (868) 3,464
Gooduwill (note 24) B (M) - 8,719 5,752 14,471
Gain on bargain purchase ~ ZEWELE (3,423) - - (3,423)
1,187 8,441 4,884 14,512
Satisfied by: MTHIAREM
Cash consideration BERE 1,187 2,432 2,442 6,061
Fair value of 50% equity 50% MR 2
interests AFE - 6,009 2,442 8,451
1,187 8,441 4,884 14,512
Net cash inflow/(outflow) WEEEZBETN/
arising on acquisitions: ()B4
Cash consideration paid EARERE (1,187) (2,432) (2,442) (6,061)
Cash and cash equivalents ~ WEzRERBELE
acquired =L 975 7,156 187 8,318
(212) 4,724 (2,255) 2,257

TREEFXNEEERAR ¢ T —FFR
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41.

154

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(b)

Acquisition of other subsidiaries (Cont’d)
The Group recognised a gain on bargain
purchase of HK$3,423,000 in the business
combination of Beijing Tiantongsaibo. The
business combination results in a gain on
bargain purchase because of good business
relationship with the vendors.

The Group recognised a gain of HK$6,009,000
as a result of measuring at fair value its 50%
equity interests in Hangzhou Qianbao held
before the business combination. The Group
recognised a gain of HK$2,442,000 as a result
of measuring at fair value its 50% equity
interests in Kanghui held before the business
combination.

The goodwill arising on the acquisitions
of Hangzhou Qianbao and Kanghui is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of
the distribution of the Group’s products and
services in the underlying markets and the
anticipated future operating synergies from
the combination.

Beijing Tiantongsaibo, Hangzhou Qianbao
and Kanghui jointly contributed approximately
HK$2,879,000 and HK$964,000 to the
Group’s turnover and loss for the year
respectively for the period between their
respective dates of acquisitions and the end
of the reporting period.
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BRI AL
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41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Acquisition of other subsidiaries (Cont’d)
If the acquisition had been completed on
1 January 2011, total Group turnover from
continuing operations for the year would have
been HK$348,081,000, and profit for the year
from continuing operations would have been
HK$277,688,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the turnover and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2011, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

Purchase of non-controlling interests

In 2011, the Group acquired 49% equity
interests in two 51% owned subsidiaries
(Shenyang Shanglian and Shenzhen
Shanglian) from the non-controlling
shareholders at total cash consideration of
HK$4,233,000. The effect of the acquisition

BE—_T—

41.

“HE+-A=t+—HIFE

mERERBRME @)

(b)

(c)

Wi H A E A R (&)
HMEER=—E——F—8—
HERRK  NEBFRARBE
SIEREEE T EEETRE
7 348,081,000/8 7t * F A
REFELCEERZNER
277,688,00058 7T - {BEEZE R
E/ERBARE - WIEHB N
WBER=-_ZE——F—8F—
HRERZBRT » REBT
EMRSeEEEREEX
B N TBEABRREREZ
FEA o

BAJEIERERS

RIE——F KEEULE
W& 184,233,000 7T » [
MEEES1 %R 2B LD
=BG EE R RYIEE) 2
FE 12 IR AR R UK BB 49 % IR AN R
&= WBYHALATEE AR

on the equity attributable to the owners of the LR ENT ¢
Company is as follows:
HK$°000
FET
Cash considerations HERE 4,233
Less: Share of net assets in the subsidiaries & : FrUkiEKB AT D15
acquired EEFE (1,383)
Loss on acquisition recognised directly HENERBERZ
in equity WS 1R 2,850

TEAF X NEEAR AT ¢ —T——FFH
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41.

156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 41.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries

(i)

On 5 September 2011 the Group
completed its disposal of 44.99% equity
interest in Wuhan SYSCAN Ltd. (“Wuhan
SYSCAN?”). Upon completion of the
disposal, the Group has approximately
11.79% equity interest in Wuhan
SYSCAN and hence classified as
available-for-sale financial assets of
the Group. The entire equity interest
in Wuhan SYSCAN was disposed of
on 31 December 2011 together with
other entities under SYSCAN Holdings
Limited (note 41(d)(ii)).

On 5 September 2011, the Group
completed its disposal of 80% equity
interest in BERKERRNBERESE
BPBRA7 (Hainan Shanglian Huitong
Commercial Investment Management
Co. Ltd. (“Hainan Shanglian”).

On 28 November 2011, the Group
completed its disposal of 70% equity
interest in Kanghui. Upon completion of
the disposal, the Group has 25% equity
interest in Kanghui which is hence
classified as an associate of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-_A=1+—HILFE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 41. #ZLeRERERMT®E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont’d) (d HEWBLRGE)
i)  (Cont’d) 0y (&)
Net assets/(liabilities) at the date of REETKAHZE
completion of disposal were as follows: E/(BE)FENT
Wuhan Hainan
SYSCAN  Shanglian Kanghui Total
REYR ] 3 Gl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER

Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « BER&E 28,095 166 1,048 29,309
Prepaid land lease payments ~ #EfHitAEHE 45,483 - - 45,483
Construction in progress HEIR 92,119 - - 92,119
Inventories BE 13,719 - - 13,719
Trade receivables TR 7,968 - - 7,968
Prepayments, deposits and other FE{ZE » ke R

receivables ELfth R 9,369 315 1,056 10,740
Bank and cash balances RITRB A 2,610 3,260 225 6,095
Trade payables FEMERS (11,511) - (3,485) (14,996)
Accruals and other payables BREAREMENTIE (69,512) (4,814) - (74,326)
Due to a non-controlling ER—EHBAR

shareholder of a subsidiary —ZFERRRNE (24,864) - - (24,864)
Attributable goodwill EEe - 989 5,752 6,741
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of H&EE%E /(&) %A 93,476 (84) 4,596 97,988
Release of foreign currency BRRERRE

translation reserve (4,896) 74 ©) (4,825)
Non-controlling interests FRRER (39,549) 215 58 (39,276)
Waiver of amount due to the HRENERSE

purchaser (36,000) - - (36,000)
Fair value of investment in RENHBARREZ

subsidiary retained NVE (11,803) - (916) (12,719)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEMHBATKE

subsidiaries (&58) 772 2,727 (319) 3,184
Total consideration - satisfied by ##tE-B4&EH

cash 2,000 2,932 3,420 8,352
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising  HEE4£ZBEFEA/

on disposal: (i) 358
Cash consideration received 2B ERE 2,000 2,932 3,420 8,352
Cash and cash equivalents HEZEER

disposed of REZEN (2,610) (3,260) (225) (6,095)

610) (328) 3,195 2257
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

41. NOTES

TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont’d)

(i)

158

On 28 December 2011 the Group
completed its disposal of SYSCAN
group companies which represent
SYSCAN Holdings Limited and all its
subsidiaries and associates.

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

41. HZEBREREXRMT(#E)

(d HEMEBARGE)
i) ®K=T——F+=A
—+NA - KEAERX
M HESYSCANE E
2 7 - Bl SYSCAN
Holdings Limited & &
2B ATREE

NG
Net liabilities at the date of disposal REERHZzAEF
were as follows: BT
HK$°000
FHBT
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ MEKRRERE 1,938
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEENKEE 11,683
Investment in associates REENTZRE 24,363
Inventories =& 7,977
Trade receivables FE U BR X 3,243
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAFIE ~ e R HAME
receivables e 54,445
Due from an associate e — R Bt X B FIE 444
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE 4,275
Trade payables FE1SBRRR (2,318)
Accruals and other payables JEIRE AR Efth (T TR (141,377)
Amount due to the Company FE{FA A B FRE (36,294)
Net liabilities disposed of HeEEETE (71,621)
Release of foreign currency translation 17 BREEE 53 (%1%
reserve (389)
Non-controlling interests RS 96
Disposal of sale loan HEHEER 36,294
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARE 41,320
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BRE-URSEN 5,700
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHSRAFRE !
Cash consideration received 2UIRERE 5,700
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZEERBEELEEY (4,275)
1,425
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(e)

Significant non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group had the following major non-cash
transactions:

As detailed in note 36, the Company issued
convertible bonds of principal amounts of
HK$346,400,000 on 29 March 2012 to settle
the contingent consideration payable after
Country Praise Group fulfilling the conditions
in Scenario 3 as set out in note 35 to the
financial statements. The convertible bonds
with principal amount of HK$160,000,000
and HK$66,400,000 were converted to
500,000,000 and 207,500,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each of the Company on 29
March and 10 October 2012, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Group had the following major non-cash
transactions:

(i) As detailed in notes 35 and 41(a),
acquisition of Country Praise Group at
the consideration of HK$1,018,088,000
was partly satisfied by issuing
218,750,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company and
partly satisfied by contingently issuable
convertible bonds with fair value of
HK$850,588,000.

hEA
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41.
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BR=2HHR RZE
—Z—FE=ZAZ-t+hB T
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H » 7Zx £ % A 160,000,000
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=ET—HLEFEE KEEE
ETUTEAFRERS !
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

41.

43.

44.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

(e) Significant non-cash transactions
(Cont’d)

)

As detailed in note 36, the Company
issued convertible bonds of principal
amounts of HK$76,800,000 and
HK$76,800,000 on 22 July 2011 and
20 October 2011, respectively, to settle
the contingent consideration payable
after Country Praise Group fulfilling
the conditions in Scenario 1 and
Scenario 2 as set out in note 35 to the
financial statements. Both convertible
bonds were exercised and converted
to 240,000,000 and 240,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company, respectively.

BE-_T——HF+-_A=1+—HIFE
41. HFERERERMT®)

() EXRFREXRZ )

(i) IEMTEE36FTHL 0 AD
&) 7 Country Praise
5 B K B A% R Ak B
HBAEBER K
BR-z2GEH%E 9
AR=—ZT——FtA
—_+ZHRZZE——
F+AZ+HEBITAR
% 7 76,800,000 % 7T
X 76,800,000 % T #Y
A} ES o UEM
FEH&WHE o T 2
BREHE 2 BIETHE
& 5 # £240,000,000
% 5 240,000,000 & Z<
NEBREEO0OE
TTZEB °

n

o

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42, AR \,Ja
As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the BE-_ZE——F+=-A=1+-—
Company did not have any significant contingent ZIK’EI&ZIK’RTjtﬁEﬂEj(‘SZ%
liabilities (2011: Nil). BE(CE——F:\)-
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. EXREE
As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the RZE——-F+=ZA=+—H &K
Company did not have any material capital SERAR BB EKEARE
commitments (2011: Nil). B(=ZZ——F 1 8|)-
LEASE COMMITMENTS 44. 78 ’JEKTJ%
At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum RZE——-—F+=ZA=+—H R
lease payments under non-cancellable operating ?J“‘T\Ti‘éﬂlﬁé*““%ﬂ”ﬁﬂTZ*iﬁw
leases are payable as follows: RAERELBENT ¢
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E2-—_F 2 ——fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Within one year % 6,218 5,957
In the second to fifth year inclusive  S=FZFHF
(EBFEEEME) 14,422 2,936
Over five years BBRAEE 14,873 -
35,5613 8,893
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

44. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)

Operating lease payments represent rental payable
by the Group for certain of its offices. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of one to ten year
and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do

not include contingent rentals.

45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to those related party transactions
and balances disclosed elsewhere in the

==y

B “HE+-A=t+—HIFE

44, FELIEE (&)

KEHERBREASENES TH
REEMNZ2EE - HYBFII—F
THEHEHE  HEREBREE
BNt ASARAE -

45. BEALTXRS

(@) BUBHRREMEEHIREZ
BEALRZREHRD &

financial statements, the Group had the EERFREBBEALET
following transactions and balances with its IR R aEeR o
related parties during the year.
2012 2011
—E-CF —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHBT

Card transaction levies received  RERAEEz—HEE

by a related company on behalf  ATWEZ X BHE

of the Group 863 1,099
Service charge paid to XN F-—EEEARZ

a related company RS & (501) (1,058)
Purchased property, plant m—REEEATEBA

and equipment from M~ BEREE

a related company 1,051 -
Settlement funds paid to REAEE - —REEE

the contracted merchants NAEEXAFEINEF 2

by a related company on behalf #£EES

of the Group (193,944) (389,806)
Due from a related company FEUN —RIRGE A BIZhIE -

included in prepayments and FFABRARERES

deposits 3,743 247
Due from/(to) a related company  fEUk —REEFE N RIFRIE

included in trade receivables/ TR (FEAT) BRFX

(payables) 196 (499)
Due to a related company included Fely — R EEE A RIFIE -

in other payables EEt AH TR - (890)

A director, Mr. Guan Guisen, has significant
influence over the related company.

EEHERLEHBEERA
BEAZEN -

REEFENEEERAR e —T——FF% 161



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2012

45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 45.

(Cont’d)

(b) Compensation to key management

HE—

T——F+_A=+—HItFE

BEANLTRZ ()

(b) PEEREERRFLHEHE

Group
REME
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FBT
Salaries and allowance e 2y 4,489 6,248
Equity-settled share option REEERBRE
benefits BRI 672 -
Retirement benefit scheme RIKIBRIGTEIHERR
contributions 60 36
5,221 6,284

46. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 46.

The operations of prepaid cards and gift cards
business have been combined into a single
operating segment as the directors consider
that new presentation is more appropriate to
the financial statements, in consideration of the
segments having similar economic characteristics
in terms of customers and distribution channels.
Certain comparative figure related to the segment
have been restated as a result of conformity with
the current year’s presentation.

47. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  47.

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2013.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T FHHHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out below. Please refer to the auditors’ reports of the
respective years of annual reports regarding the audit

opinions.

AEEBELBEVRFERE EE &
BEROYBREZ2HUZ(HHREC TR
ZREGIBHER  INBERKES B
Mo EAINT - HEFSZRFSH
FRFEBRBFREZLBERES

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t-HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
=%-=fF Z2--F Z2-2F ZZEAF SEINR
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TER Tax TER TAx
Restated
EL]]
RESULT ES
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELEXK
REVENUE W& 212,805 263,095 - 65,155 71,466
Cost of sales EERK (131,374) (177,992 - (54,461)  (58,706)
Gross profit EF 81,431 85,103 - 10,694 12,760
Other income and gains HE AR Wz 7,031 3,136 434 10,331 4,738
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEHRR (5,353) (8,469) - (7,499) (8,520)
General and administrative expenses —RRATHE X (45,681) (42,912) (12,720) (36,516) (24,338)
Research and development expenses MRRERERS - - - (10,868) (10,153)
Other operating expenses HirSem% (6,000) 43) (6,167) (762) (1,131)
Impairment of interest in R—EEEARN
an associate ERHE (822) - - (19,960) -
Impairment loss on other receivables HittEWR 2 RBEEE - - (51,029) - -
Impairment of goodwill BERE (160,499) - - - -
Equity-settled share option expense RELEERERY (6,022) - (512) (8,364) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz Wi - 2,727 - 502 -
Gain on disposal of associates HEME N Rz W@ - - - - -
Gain on deemed disposal RELENBLR
of subsidiaries Ay 6 - - - 195 -
Gain on revaluation of previous held B EARNEREHE
interest in jointly controlled entity EREseY Sl - 8,451 - - -
Gain on fair value change of contingent BN SAREBATE
consideration payable BEWH 252,640 230,986 - - -
Gain on bargain purchase on business %K AHEE
combination B s - 3,423 - - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWRBARZEE - (315) - - -
Loss on disposal of HE-BHKE AR
an associate ZEB - - - - (529)

TREEFXNEEERAR ¢ T —FFR
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T FHHHRE

Year ended 31 December

BZEt-A=t-HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
~%-=F —2--F C-2-2F —ZBNF "EIN\F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TR TR TR T
Restated
EL]]
Share of losses of: MEUTEFZER :
Jointly controlled entity fEEFIER - (1,117) - - -
Associates NG| - (100) - (623) (1,864)
Finance costs RERA (12,371) (1,186) - (146) (12)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBLADRR/ (B58) 104,354 279,684 (69,994) (63,016) (29,049)
Tax BE (12,757) (15,760) - - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHE YEARFROM ~ RERBESLEK Y
CONTINUING OPERATIONS Enafl/ (B8) 91,507 263,924 (69,994) (63,016) (29,049)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRILREER
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries ~ 1B{EHEM B A B - - - - -
Sales consideration forfeited BB HERE - - - - 51,387
Profit/(loss) for the year from a BALEEERZER
discontinued operation wkl/ (E18) - 14,926 (80,029) - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FRiaRl/ (B8) - 278,850 (150,023 (63,016) 22,338
Attributable to: UTATEEES
Owners of the Company EAREEA 91,362 283,071 (148,983) (62,666) 22,338
Non-controlling interests FERER 235 (4,221) (1,040) (350) -
91,597 278,850 (150,023 (63,016) 22,338
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE B8R
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERELR
TOTAL ASSETS HEE 1,251,850 1,408,008 296,250 172,917 183,192
TOTAL LIABILITIES mafE (190,100) (617,710) (202,401) (88,706) (49,952)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FiRRER (88) 147 (43,012) (2,061) -
1,061,662 790,445 50,837 82,150 133,240
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